
BR/04/03/02 

London Borough of Barking and Dagenham 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 

THE EXECUTIVE 
 

Tuesday, 7 September 2004 - Civic Centre, Dagenham, 7:00 pm 
 
Members: Councillor C J Fairbrass (Chair); Councillor C Geddes (Deputy Chair); 
Councillor J L Alexander, Councillor G J Bramley, Councillor H J Collins, Councillor 
S Kallar, Councillor M A McCarthy, Councillor M E McKenzie, Councillor L A Smith 
and Councillor T G W Wade 
 
Also Invited: Councillor J R Denyer for Agenda Item 7. 
 
Declaration of Members Interest: In accordance with Article 1, Paragraph 12 of the 
Constitution, Members are asked to declare any direct/indirect financial or other 
interest they may have in any matter which is to be considered at this meeting  
 
 
27.8.04    Graham Farrant 
        Chief Executive 
 
 

Contact Officer Barry Ray 
Tel. 020 8227 2134 
Fax: 020 8227 2171 

Minicom: 020 8227 2685 
E-mail: barry.ray@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 

17 August 2004 (Pages 1 - 3)  
 
Business Items  

 
Public Items 3 to 6 and Private Items 14 to 17 are business items.  The Chair will 
move that these be agreed without discussion, unless any Member asks to raise a 
specific point. 
 
Any discussion of a Private Business Item will take place after the exclusion of the 
public and press.  

 
3. Corporate Monitoring Group Membership (Page 5)  
 
4. Attendance at the Collaborative Action Research Network 2004 Annual 

Conference (Pages 7 - 9)  
 



BR/04/03/02 

5. Warren Comprehensive OFSTED Inspection (Pages 11 - 13)  
 
6. Citizenship Ceremonies (Pages 15 - 20)  
 
Discussion Items  

 
7. Draft Final Report of the Leisure Facilities Scrutiny Panel (Pages 21 - 28)  
 
8. Food Safety Business Plan (Pages 29 - 31)  
 
 The Food Safety Business Plan has been circulated to all Members separately.  

Please bring your copy with you to the meeting.  
 

9. Health and Safety Business Plan (Pages 33 - 34)  
 
 The Health and Safety Service Business Plan has been circulated to all 

Members separately.  Please bring your copy with you to the meeting.  
 

10. Third Annual Report of the Regeneration Strategy - An Urban 
Renaissance in East London (Pages 35 - 58)  

 
11. Any other public items which the Chair decides are urgent   
 
12. To consider whether it would be appropriate to pass a resolution to 

exclude the public and press from the remainder of the meeting due to 
the nature of the business to be transacted.   

 
Private Business 

 
The public and press have a legal right to attend Council meetings such as the 
Executive, except where business is confidential or certain other sensitive 
information is to be discussed.  The list below shows why items are in the 
private part of the agenda, with reference to the relevant legislation (the 
relevant paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972).    

 
Discussion Items  

 
13. Sustainable Communities Fund Bids (Pages 59 - 70)  
 
 Concerns a Contractual Matter (paragraphs 7 and 9)  

 
Business Items  

 
14. Procurement Spend to Save - Progress Report (Pages 71 - 74)  
 
 Concerns a Contractual Matter (paragraphs 1, 7 and 8)  

 
15. Corporate Communications - Packaging of Support Services Contract 

with regard to the Distribution of Citizen Magazine (Pages 75 - 76)  
 
 Concerns a Contractual Matter (paragraphs 8 and 9)  



BR/04/03/02 

16. Managing the Conclusion of Shape Up for Homes (Pages 77 - 82)  
 
 Concerns a Contractual Matter (paragraph 7)  

 
17. Major Adaptations - Disabled Facilities Grant Application (Pages 83 - 85)  
 
 Concerns an Individual Resident (paragraph 4)  

 
18. Any other confidential or exempt items which the Chair decides are 

urgent   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



BR/04/03/02 

 
THE EXECUTIVE 

 
Tuesday, 17 August 2004 

(7:00 - 8:50 pm)  
  

Present: Councillor C J Fairbrass (Chair), Councillor C Geddes (Deputy Chair), 
Councillor J L Alexander, Councillor G J Bramley, Councillor H J Collins, 
Councillor M A McCarthy, Councillor M E McKenzie, Councillor L A Smith and 
Councillor T G W Wade 
 
Also Present by invitation: Councillor W F L Barns, Councillor M A R Fani and 
Councillor Mrs V M Rush  
 
Also Present: Councillor B M Osborn 
 
Apologies: Councillor S Kallar 
 

83. Minutes (3 August 2004) 
 
 Agreed. 

 
84. The Experiences of Lesbian, Gay Men, Bisexuals and Transgender (LBGT) 

People in Barking and Dagenham 
 
 Received a report based on a survey carried out in the Borough in 2002 / 2003 

exploring the experiences of LGBT people living and working in the Borough and 
identifies key issues and concerns which will help to inform policy and service 
planning. 
 
Agreed, in order to respond proactively to the European Union Directive on 
sexual orientation and deliver on existing policy commitments in the Council’s 
Corporate Equalities and Diversity Policy Framework, to: 
 

1. Approve the contents of the report; 
 

2. the LGBT Strategic Statement of Intent; based upon the 
recommendations contained in the ‘Breaking the Silence’ Report; 

 
3. Endorse the establishment of an LGBT consultative mechanism and 

proposals to continue work with the local LGBT communities through 
the Council and the Partnership; and 

 
4. Recommend that the Report and its Executive Summary be formally 

referred to the Barking and Dagenham Partnership. 
 

85. East London Transit 
 
 Received a report seeking the Council’s endorsement of proposals by Transport 

for London (TfL) to develop the first phase of the East London Transit (ELT) as a 
bus based Intermediate Mode System from Ilford, via Barking Town Centre, to 
Barking Riverside and Dagenham Dock.  The report also outlined TfL’s proposed 
route and technology as well as highlighting issues for consideration. 

AGENDA ITEM 2

Page 1



BR/04/03/02 

 
Agreed, in order to contribute to the Council’s Community Priorities of 
“Regenerating the Local Economy” and “Making Barking and Dagenham 
Cleaner, Greener and Safer”, to the principle of the East London Transit, subject 
to the following conditions: 
 

1. TfL must ensure that any bus based system developed is capable of being 
upgraded to a tram within 10 years subject to increasing demand. 

 
2. In developing a bus based system, TfL must ensure that no works 

compromise a future upgrade to tram. 
 

3. TfL must ensure that the bus technology used is constantly upgraded to 
remain leading edge. 

 
4. TfL must fund and work with the Council, using all available technology to 

enforce parking restrictions along the route. 
 
5. TfL must ensure that the frequency of service is at least every five to eight 

minutes to ensure that a modal shift from private cars to public transport is 
achieved. 

 
6. TfL must fund the relocation of part of the Barking Town Centre Street 

Market to London Road including the costs of any revised traffic 
management scheme and alterations to the public highway in line with the 
Barking Town Centre Public Realm Town Code. 

 
7. In implementation of the ELT route from Fanshawe Avenue Roundabout 

through the pedestrianised parts of Barking Town Centre as far as the 
former Westbury Public House TfL must design and implement any 
revisions to the Public Realm (public highway) in line with the Barking 
Town Centre Public Realm Town Code. 

 
8. In the detailed design of the scheme in and around Barking Town Centre 

TfL must take account of the major regeneration schemes. 
 

86. Performance Monitoring 
 
 Received the Best Value Performance Plan monitoring report for the first quarter 

2004 / 2005.  The Management Team gave a presentation on, and we 
discussed, performance against a range of key Performance Indicators within the 
Plan. 
 
Agreed to receive further reports on the following two areas: 
 

1. The proposed recycling pilot scheme to take place on the Harts Lane 
Estate; and 

 
2. The performance of schools in the Borough in relation to school 

exclusions and Local Education Authority provision for excluded pupils. 
 

Page 2



BR/04/03/02 

 
87. Budget Monitoring Report 2004 / 2005 - April to June 2004 
 
 Noted a report providing an update on the Council’s revenue and capital position 

from the beginning of April to the end of June 2004.  The report also highlighted 
continuing pressures on Education, totalling about £0.6 million, some pressures 
in Corporate Strategy and the current position of the Housing Revenue Account 
 
Agreed, as a matter of good financial practise, that: 
 

1. The Director of Education, Arts and Libraries is to present to the Executive 
a detailed report on the 2004 / 2005 Education Budget position with a 
proposed Action Plan; 

 
2. The Director of Education, Arts and Libraries is to ensure continued 

delivery of this proposed Action Plan and that the Director of Corporate 
Strategy similarly identifies and delivers an Action Plan; and 

 
3. Further updates on their progress be presented in future budget 

monitoring reports. 
 

88. * Ethnic Monitoring 
 
 Noted a report providing an update on the continued refinement of the Council’s 

ethnic monitoring systems. 
 

89. Private Business 
 
 Agreed to exclude the public and press for the remainder of the meeting, as the 

business was confidential. 
 

90. * Olympic Bid 2012 
 
 Received a report detailing a request from the London 2012 Organisation (which 

is organising the submission of London’s Bid for the 2012 Olympics), which will 
allow Barking and Dagenham to take an active part in supporting the Olympics in 
line with the Executive’s decision of 1 June 2004 (Minute 9 refers). 
 
Agreed, in order to assist the Council in achieving the Community Priorities of 
“Promoting Equal Opportunities and Celebrating Diversity”, “Raising General 
Pride in the Borough” and “Regenerating the Local Economy”, to accede to the 
request, as detailed in the report, in the event that the forthcoming 2012 Olympic 
Bid is successful and subject to the Council’s full costs being recovered. 
 

 
 
 
 
* Items considered as a matter of urgency with the consent of the Chair under Section 
100 (4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

7 SEPTEMBER 2004 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE STRATEGY 
 
CORPORATE MONITORING GROUP (CMG) 
MEMBERSHIP STRUCTURE 
 

FOR DECISION 

This report sets out a recommendation from the Corporate Monitoring Group for decision 
by the Executive 
 
Summary 
 
Last year the Executive (27 May 2003) agreed that “the Corporate Monitoring Group 
(CMG) should also be responsible for overseeing the Council’s relations with the external 
Auditors.” 
 
PriceWaterhouseCoopers (PWC), as part of their Audit Plan for the year ending 31 March 
2005, presented to the CMG Audit Committee, advised expanding the Membership of the 
CMG Audit Committee from two to three Members in order to fulfil its role as an audit 
committee.  Furthermore, PWC strongly advised that the additional Member be from one 
of the minority parties. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is asked to recommend the Assembly to appoint another Member to the 
Corporate Monitoring Group Audit Committee. 
 
Reason 
 
To help the CMG to undertake the role of an audit committee. 
 
Contact Officer: 
Paul Kutasi  

 
Democratic Services 
Officer 

  
Tel: 020 8227 2370 
Fax: 020 8227 2171 
Minicom: 020 8227 2685 
E-mail: paul.kutasi@lbbd.gov.uk 
 
  

    

 
 
 
 
Background Papers – None. 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

7 SEPTEMBER 2004 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION, ARTS AND LIBRARIES 
 
ATTENDANCE AT THE COLLABORATIVE ACTION 
RESEARCH NETWORK 2004 ANNUAL CONFERENCE 
 

FOR DECISION 

This paper seeks the approval of the Executive for attendance at the Collaborative Action 
Research network Conference 2004 in accordance with the Council's Conferences, Visits 
and Hospitality Rules which states that the Executive must approve such attendance. 
 
Summary 
 
The Executive is asked to agree to at the Collaborative Action Research (CARN) 
International Conference, to be held on 5 – 7 November 2004 to present a joint paper on 
their work with gifted and talented students. 
 
Recommendation / Reason 
 
The Executive is asked to approve the attendance of the Borough's Strand Co-ordinator 
for Gifted and Talented students and the Gifted and Talented Co-ordinators from Barking 
Abbey, Dagenham Priory, Eastbrook and Eastbury schools at the CARN Conference on  
5 – 7 November 2004, at a cost of be £1,530 plus travel costs, in order to present a joint 
paper on their work with gifted and talented students in their schools. 
 
Contact Officer: 
Jenny Crossley 

 
Head of Policy and 
Management Services 

 
Tel: 020 8227 3507 
Fax: 020 8227 3275 
e-mail: jenny.crossley@lbbd.gov.uk
 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 The Collaborative Action Research Network (CARN) supports and promotes 

practitioner research in a range of professional practice contexts.  The conference 
provides a forum for those working in schools, colleges, universities and other 
settings to present and discuss research findings, ideas and work in progress and 
to contribute to the growth of professional knowledge and theory. 

 
1.2. The teachers from the above schools have each carried out a small scale action 

research study in their school into an aspect of provision for gifted and talented 
students.  They have written their findings as case studies.  These have formed 
the basis for a jointly-authored paper on the value and impact of teachers working 
as researchers in their schools.  A proposal for a presentation based on their work 
has been submitted to CARN and accepted for the conference programme in 
November. 

 
1.3. The work done by the teachers represents a departure from the usual practice of 

teachers researching their practice in that it was not done for an accredited course 
but as part of the continuing professional development programme provided by 

AGENDA ITEM 4

Page 7



the Borough for the Gifted and Talented Co-ordinators.  In each case the research 
has resulted in a positive impact on provision in the school.  A presentation on this 
project was given at the recent Beacon Council Open Day.  The opportunity to 
present a paper about work in the Borough's schools in an international forum will 
be of value, not only to the teachers in terms of their professional development, 
but also to the Borough in terms of informing the wider professional community 
about the work in its schools.  One of the teachers has already extended his case 
study into a dissertation for a Master's degree.  Publication of a jointly authored 
article in an international journal will follow the conference presentation. 

 
1.4. The conference will enable us to engage in dialogue and receive critical feedback 

on our work.  It will also provide opportunities to hear Keynote speakers, to 
participate in seminars and workshops and to meet peers and colleagues from 
schools, universities and other professional contexts. 

 
2.  Financial Implications 

 
2.1 The CARN conference is being hosted by the International University of Andalucia 

and will be held in Malaga from 5 – 7 November.  The cost is £306.00 for each 
delegate including meals and accommodation.  The total cost for four teachers 
and the Gifted and Talented Co-ordinator will be £1,530 plus travel costs, not yet 
known but estimated at £100.00 for each delegate.  The costs of attending the 
conference can be met from the Gifted and Talented (Excellence in Cities) training 
budget. 

 
 
 
 
Background Papers 
 

i.) Abstract of conference paper proposal (attached as appendix 1) 
ii.) Information about CARN: at the Institute of Education, Manchester Metropolitan 

University: email: http://www.did.stu.mmu.ac.uk/carn/ 
 

Page 8



Appendix 1 
 

"Case Studies provide a realistic and practical view." 
 

The process and impact of teachers writing case studies in the field of Gifted and 
Talented Education in the London Borough of Barking and Dagenham 

 
Janet Dyson, Andy Gray, Anthony Moloney,  
 Debbie Rider, Lisa Rowley & Chris Sullivan 

  
This paper reports on a case study writing project with teachers in the area of Gifted 
& Talented education in nine secondary schools.  Each teacher selected an aspect of 
their provision and carried out a small scale action research study, the results of which 
were written up as case studies.  Areas covered include: 

• raising the level of challenge in lessons;  
• tackling underachievement of gifted and talented pupils;  
• providing effective support for talented pupils. 
 

The paper has a dual focus.  It highlights the areas of gifted and talented education 
which provided the focus for the case studies. The teachers will present brief synopses 
of their findings and their experiences of the project and its impact.  In addition, there 
is a focus on approaches to facilitating and supporting action research and case study 
writing with busy teachers and an exploration of the value of case studies as a means 
of developing practice, both for the writers and their colleagues.   
 
The writing process is outlined.  A writing day provided time and space, away from 
the demands of school, allowing teachers time to discuss, read, reflect and write up 
examples of practice in their schools which they felt had been significant. They were 
asked to identify strengths, weaknesses, factors contributing to success, and ideas for 
extending and sharing practice. Advance preparation included collection and analysis 
of data, reading from the theoretical framework for gifted and talented education and 
familiarisation with case study practice. The aim was to produce a series of varied 
case studies which could be used by others as a basis for developing their practice.  
The paper draws on literature relating to case study and practitioner action research, 
including Bassey (1999) and Elliott (1991), and explores a link with Ontario College 
of Teachers where a similar case study project is being developed, (Smith and 
Goldblatt, 2004). 
 
References 
 
Bassey, M.  (1999) Case Study Research in Educational Settings, Open University 
Press: Buckingham & Philadelphia 
Elliott, J. (1991), Action Research for Educational Change, Open University Press: 
Buckingham & Philadelphia 
Smith, D. & Goldblatt, P. (2004) Cases as Catalysts, paper given at AERA Annual 
Conference, San Diego, April 2004. 
 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

THE EXECUTIVE 
 

7 SEPTEMBER 2004 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION, ARTS AND LIBRARIES 
 

WARREN COMPREHENSIVE OFSTED INSPECTION 
 

FOR INFORMATION 

This report sets out actions in response to the OFSTED inspection of Warren Comprehensive 
School. 
 
Summary 
 
This report informs Members of the findings of the recent OFSTED inspection of Warren 
Comprehensive School and actions in response to the findings. 
 
Ward Affected - Whalebone 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is asked to note the contents of the report. 
 
Reasons 
 
To support the school in making rapid progress to come out of Special Measures. 
 
Contact Officer: 
Jane Hargreaves 
 
 
 
Steve Rowe 

 
Head of Literacy and 
Cultural Services 
 
 
Principal Inspector 

 
Tel: 020 8270 4818 
Fax: 020 8270 4860 
E-mail: jane.hargreaves@lbbd.gov.uk 
 
Tel: 020 8270 4820 
Fax: 020 8270 4886 
E-mail: steve.rowe@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Background 
 

1.1 Warren Comprehensive School was inspected by OFSTED during the week 
of May 10 – 14.  The inspection was carried out under a pilot scheme 
designed to trial a new approach to inspection.  The main body of the 
inspection was carried out by a small team of Her Majesty’s Inspectors (HMI) 
over a three day period.  At the end of the inspection the school was placed 
in Special Measures.  HMI were not confident that the school had the 
capacity to improve over the short and medium term. 

 
1.2 The Local Education Authority (LEA) has a period of 40 working days from 

this date to agree the school’s action plan and to determine its own actions 
and programme to support the school.  The 40 day period ends on 
September 20th 2004. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 11



 

2. Main Body of the Report 
 

2.1 Inspectors identified a number of key issues for action in relation to the need 
to improve the quality of teaching in Key Stage 3, literacy across the 
curriculum, the behaviour of some pupils, levels of attendance and senior 
management monitoring arrangements.  Weaknesses in the overall 
leadership capacity of the school was identified as an important contributory 
factor. 

 
2.2 The process of supporting the school has begun and a number of actions 

have been taken.  These include:  
 

In relation to the governing body: 
• A preparatory meeting with the Chair of Governors (8 June) attended by 3 

senior (Community Inspection and Advisory Service) CIAS inspectors   
• An emergency meeting of Governing Body convened (15 June).  3 senior 

CIAS inspectors in attendance, to brief governors and begin the process 
of writing an Action Plan; 

• The creation of a small governors’ sub-group convened to oversee the 
writing of the action plan – (first meeting 29 June).  The CIAS is 
represented on this sub-group; 

• A special staff meeting was convened (June 29) to enable governors to 
brief staff about the implications of the Special Measures ruling and their 
role in bringing about improvements.  A CIAS Principal Inspector gave the 
keynote address to this briefing; 

• Attendance at an OFSTED seminar on special measures action planning 
– (July 12).  A CIAS representative attended with the Chair of Governors 
and a representative senior manager; 

• In addition the Director is taking steps to appoint additional governors to 
strengthen the Governing Body. 

 
In relation to the senior management of the school: 
• The Headteacher has resigned. 
• The Headteacher of Robert Clack School (Paul Grant) has agreed, 

from 31st July 2004,  to work in direct support of Warren bringing with 
him an excellent track record in school improvement. 

• Bernadette Lloyd, currently Deputy Head at Warren, has been 
appointed acting Headteacher as from August 1st 2004. 

• The post of Headteacher will be advertised in September 2004. 
• A designated School Improvement Adviser (SIA) has been allocated to 

the school.  The SIA has attended three School Leadership Team 
Meetings (SMT) meetings to date and held several additional meetings 
with Chair of Governors and headteacher; 

• SIA will be a key member of all future SMT planning and monitoring 
activities. 

• SIA has helped SMT to plan a 2 day middle managers’ conference – 
July 2/3 to train middle managers for their role in implementing the 
action plan.   

 

Page 12



 

In relation to future support plans: 
• The Director has spoken to staff and has underlined his commitment to 

strengthening leadership and management to enhance the school’s 
capacity to improve; 

• An additional Warren staff training day is planned for September prior 
to the start of term – 20 newly appointed staff to be inducted; 

• A CIAS/DEAL Support and Monitoring Group has been established 
(including input from Human Resources and Finance.); 

• An LEA Commentary and Statement of Action will be written and will 
accompany the school’s action plan when it is presented to OFSTED; 

• In mid-September the CIAS will carry out a cross-departmental review 
against each of the school’s key issues for action to establish a 
baseline for future monitoring activities; 

 
3. Consultations / financial and other implications 
 

3.1 The Director has consulted with OFSTED and with DfES advisers over plans 
to strengthen the leadership of the school. 

 
3.2 Additional LEA support for the school will be provided from within the 

existing resources of the CIAS and the other LEA services and will include 
allocations from Standards Fund and Transitional Support Grant funding 
where appropriate. 
 

3.3 The quality of the school building is being improved through a £2.7m project 
within the capital programme which will provide a new teaching block and 
toilets (which were specifically criticised in the OFSTED report) and 
improvements to a number of existing facilities.  

 
4. Conclusion 
 

4.1 Although two years is technically the timescale suggested for coming out of 
Special Measures, the LEA intends to work with the school to set a target 
date of around 15-18 months.  The view of the Director, supported by 
OFSTED is that this is entirely feasible. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background papers (used in preparation of the report) 
 
• Inspection report – The Warren Comprehensive School 
 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

7 SEPTEMBER 2004 
 

REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT  
 

CITIZENSHIP CEREMONIES  
 

FOR DECISION 

To report back the review of the Citizenship Ceremonies and the proposed Fees and 
Charges for in accordance with Executive Minute362, 13 April 2004.  The setting of fees and 
charges is reserved to the Executive.  
 
Summary 
 
Under the Nationality, Immigration and Asylum Act 2002, all local authorities are required to 
provide Citizenship ceremonies for all successful applicants for naturalisation or registration 
as a British citizen, aged 18 or over, whose application has been received and processed by 
the Home Office from 1 January, 2004. 
 
On 13 April 2004, The Executive agreed that group Citizenship ceremonies be held in the 
Civic Centre Council Chamber from 26 April, but asked that a review be undertaken after 
some ceremonies had taken place to examine the suitability of the accommodation and 
costs associated.  
 
No problems have been experienced with the running of these ceremonies and participants 
surveyed have expressed their satisfaction with the overall ceremony experience.  Regular 
payments are being received from the Home Office for each citizenship certificate issued 
and costs associated with the Citizenship process are well within the level of payments 
received. 
 
Following a slow start, increased numbers of citizenship notifications are being received 
from the Home Office.  With new citizens encouraged to bring up to two guests, this 
highlights the importance of holding the group ceremonies in suitably large accommodation 
to keep pace with demand and costs to a minimum.   
 
In addition, local authorities may provide and set the fee for non standard ceremonies for 
prospective citizens who request an individual ceremony to include their own guests.  To 
cater for the limited demand that is expected from this, it is suggested that this could be 
provided at Arden House for a fee of £100 per ceremony.   
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended to agree to: 
 
i) Citizenship ceremonies continuing to be held at the Civic Centre Council Chamber 

and at other suitable premises as may be required in the future. 
 
ii) A fee for non standard ceremonies of £100.  
 

AGENDA ITEM 6

Page 15



Reason 
 
To comply with requirements of the Nationality, Immigration and Asylum Act 2002 and assist 
the Council in achieving its Community Priority of “Raising General Pride in the Borough”. 
 
Contact 
Valerie Harding 
 

 
Business Continuity 
Manager 

 
Telephone: 020 - 8227 3222 
Fax:  020 – 8227 3288 
Minicom: 020 – 8227 3040 
E-mail: val.harding@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 The Nationality, Immigration and Asylum Act 2002 includes provisions that require 

all successful applicants for naturalisation or registration as British Citizens, aged 
18 or over, to take an oath and pledge at a Citizenship Ceremony.  These 
provisions came into operation on 1 January 2004 for all successful applications 
received and processed by the Home Office from that date. 

 
1.2 The ceremony must take place within 3 months of the applicant being advised by 

the Home Office that their application for citizenship has been successful. 
 
1.3 The applicant pays a fee of £68 for the ceremony to the Home Office with the 

other fees for naturalisation or registration as a British citizen and the Home Office 
then remits the ceremony fee to the local authority.  The fee is intended to cover 
the full cost of ceremony provision. 

 
1.4 Under the Act each local authority 
 

• Must provide or make arrangements for premises where Citizenship 
Ceremonies may be held. 

 
• Must arrange for ceremonies to be conducted with sufficient frequency to 

enable applicants in their area to undertake a ceremony within the 3 
month period. 

 
• May provide additional facilities or make additional arrangements for which 

a charge not exceeding the extra cost may be made. 
 

• And the ceremony must be conducted by a Superintendent Registrar or 
Deputy Superintendent Registrar from the Births, Deaths and Marriages 
Registration service. 

 
1.5 The Executive on 13 April agreed that in order to comply with the requirements of 

the Act and assist the Council in achieving its Community Priority of “Raising 
General Pride in the Borough” that Citizenship Ceremonies be held in the Council 
Chamber at the Civic Centre from 26 April 2004 and at other suitable premises as 
may be required in the future.  The Executive also agreed to a review being 
undertaken after a few ceremonies had taken place to look into the suitability of 
the location and costs associated. 

 

Page 16



2. Group Citizenship Ceremony - Operating Arrangements 
 
2.1 Based on Home Office figures on past successful citizenship applications by 

Borough residents, the expectation was that there would  be an annual need for 
around 600 persons to attend group Citizenship Ceremonies.    

 
2.2 Ceremonies have been held fortnightly since 26 April.  At first, few citizenship 

notifications were being received from the Home Office, but since late June over 
20 notifications are being received each week and at mid July over 370 
applications were known to be waiting to be processed by the Home Office.   

 
2.3 Use of the Civic Centre Council Chamber for these ceremonies has proved to be 

very successful.  The setting gives dignity and meaning to the ceremony which is 
intended to celebrate the significance of becoming a British citizen and welcome 
the new citizen into his or her community.  There is suitable waiting space outside 
the Chamber for the registration staff to receive new citizens and check 
documentation.  This same area is then used after the ceremony for refreshments 
and for the Mayor or Deputy Mayor and staff to chat with the citizens and their 
guests and for any additional photographs to be taken.  All new citizens are 
consulted on their impression of the ceremony and all responses received have 
been very favourable. 

 
2.4 The Chamber itself is able to hold at least 25 citizens plus children and up to two 

guests each.  With the increased number of citizenship notifications being received 
it is important to use a large venue to minimise the number of ceremonies needed 
and avoid additional costs.   

 
2.5 The Mayor is scheduling certain monthly meetings at the Civic Centre to follow on 

from the Citizenship Ceremony.  The new Deputy Lieutenant, Major Tony O’Hagan 
DL, has also indicated his wish to participate in a future ceremony. 

 
2.6 It has been suggested that these ceremonies could be held at Arden House 

Register Office.  The Registration service is located on the ground floor of a 
double fronted detached house in Longbridge Road.  The accommodation 
comprises 3 office areas, a hallway and the Marriage Room.  Daytime office hours 
would not be practical for large numbers of people to attend the Register Office for 
a citizenship ceremony as this would conflict with the general public using the 
office for a wide range of registration services.  It would also reduce the time 
available for taking notices of and registering marriages with a consequent 
reduction in income.  

 
2.7 The Marriage Room is laid out to seat 28 people with a wide aisle to allow space 

for the bridal party.  The room could accommodate up to 40 people if extra 
furniture was purchased.  There is no large ante room for citizens and their guests 
to assemble or have refreshments other than the hallway which would be a 
cramped arrangement.  The public toilet is accessed from the rear garden where 
there is no external lighting, which would be required in winter and only limited on 
street parking is available.  In addition, based on current citizenship notifications 
use of the smaller accommodation provided at Arden House would necessitate 
additional ceremonies being held to keep pace with demand, which would 
increase costs.   

 

Page 17



2.8 Taking the above into account the Civic Centre Council Chamber is still 
considered to be the preferred location for holding group Citizenship Ceremonies.     

 
3. Financial Implications 
 
3.1 The administrative process associated with citizenship is very straightforward and 

the costs are negligible.  The Home Office supplies the documentation to the 
Registration Service and the prospective citizen is required to make contact with 
the Service within a defined timescale.  The Registrar goes through a Home Office 
checklist with the person, books the ceremony date and confirms this in writing. 
This work is being carried out within existing budgeted staff resources.   

 
3.2 The Home Office is paying the local authority £68 for every Citizenship certificate 

issued with £5,712 received by 6 July which represents 84 certificates. 
 
3.3 There are staffing, refreshment and photography costs for each group ceremony. 

The Superintendent Registrar and two registration staff deal with all aspects of the 
ceremony and casual staff have been employed specifically to be used for this 
additional work, to ensure sufficient staff availability and to reduce additional 
staffing costs.  

 
3.4 The cost of a ceremony based on 25 Citizens is estimated as follows: 
 

 Staff Costs:  
Registrars 
(2 hours attendance per ceremony -  at appropriate overtime rate plus on costs) 
SO2 x 1 = £19.77 per hour – planned overtime 
SC6 x 1 = £20.95 per hour 
SC4 x 1 = £17.12 per hour 
 

£  39.54
£  41.90
£  34.24

Porters / Security on attendance till 8.00 p.m. therefore no additional 
costs at present. 
 

£  00.00

Photographer Attendance 
(cost of photos in holder is £4 each)   
 

£  50.00
£100.00

Refreshments Order - only for 40 people  
(£1.25 per head) 
 

£  50.00

Postage and Stationary  
(based on two sets of mailings to applicants) 
 

£  23.25

Telephone calls and processing – estimates as exact timings difficult 
to quantify.  Estimate cost at 4 hrs per ceremony (£11.42 per hour). 
No additional costs (covered by current staffing levels and budgets).   
 

£  68.52

Total Estimated Cost per Ceremony £407.45

Estimated cost per Citizen (based on 25 at ceremony) 
 

£  16.30

Income per Citizen  
 

£  68.00

Page 18



 
 With income of £5,712 already received, this provides a surplus of approximately 

£4,340 at that stage in the financial year.  The Revenue budget for 2004/05 
assumes that the income received will equal the costs incurred.  

 
3.5 All the above refers to group citizenship ceremonies.  There is also provision 

within the Citizenship Guidance for local authorities to provide a non standard 
ceremony for those prospective citizens who request an individual ceremony with 
a number of their own guests. 

 
3.6 In such cases, the local authority may set the fee to recoup the additional costs 

incurred.  This fee would be in addition to the £68 already paid via the Home 
Office.  No such requests have been made to date, but in order that the occasional 
request may be accommodated it is suggested that it would be appropriate to use 
Arden House Marriage Room at a convenient time during the week for this 
purpose.  The suggested charge is £100 per ceremony.  Care would be taken to 
ensure that the size of the ceremony would not conflict with other users of the 
Registration service.  The cost of an individual Citizenship Ceremony at Arden 
House is follows: 

 
Staff Costs:  
(Registrars - 2 hours attendance per ceremony -  at appropriate overtime rate plus 
on costs) 
 
SO2 x 1 = £19.77 per hour – planned overtime 
SC6 x 1 = £20.95 per hour 
SC4 x 1 = £17.12 per hour 
SC3 x 1 - £ 15.20 per hour 
 

£  39.54
£  41.90
£  34.24
£  30.40

Total Cost  £146.08

Income: 
Payment from Home Office (£68) 
Proposed Individual Citizenship Ceremony Fee (£100)  £168.00

 
 As there are no porters / security personnel at Arden House, the additional 

member of staff is required for security/safety reasons.  As for weddings, the 
Citizen will be required to arrange and pay the full cost of a photographer 
themselves.  It is not possible to provide any refreshments at Arden House.  
Processing costs and other overheads are marginal and will be covered by the 
£22 surplus. 

 
4. Consultation 
 
 The following people have seen this report and are happy with it as it stands 
 
 Councillor Fairbrass, Leader’s Portfolio (Accommodation). 
 
 Councillor Collins, Portfolio Holder for Developing Rights and Responsibilities with 

the Local Community and Providing Equal Opportunities and Celebrating Diversity 
(Income and Charging).  

Page 19



 
 Councillor Wade, Portfolio Holder for Raising General Pride in the Borough 

(Registrars Service). 
  
 Bob Cooper, Interim Head of Finance, DRE. 
 Laura Williams, Management Accountant, DRE 
 
 
 
 
Background Papers 

• Nationality, Immigration and Asylum Act 2002; Home Office Guidance on 
Citizenship Ceremonies for Local Authorities and Superintendent Registrars. 

• Executive Minute 362 - 13 April 2004 re: Citizenship Ceremonies 
 
 

Page 20



 
EXECUTIVE 

 
7 SEPTEMBER 2004 

 
DRAFT FINAL REPORT OF THE LEISURE FACILITIES SCRUTINY PANEL 

 
LEISURE FACILITIES SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

FOR DECISION 

Final Reports of Scrutiny Panels are submitted to the Executive in accordance with 
Paragraph 11 of Article 5B of the Constitution for consideration and, if necessary, response 
in a separate report or verbally to the Assembly. 
 
Summary 
 
This report outlines the work of the Leisure Facilities Scrutiny Panel, for comment by the 
Scrutiny Management Board and The Executive and for decision by the Assembly. 
 
It details the action taken to meet the wide scope of the Panel’s terms of reference, having 
regard to the timescale for the work of the Panel and the limited resources available, initially 
to focus on gathering information for the production of a Leisure Activities Directory, which 
would show the amount and variety of leisure provision in the Borough and enable the 
Panel to then consider an ongoing programme, focussing on specific key issues, and having 
due regard to equalities and diversity. 
 
Recommendations 
 
1. To note that the work being done on 
 

(a) the provision for leisure within the Borough for the future and the possible 
options that could deliver that to meet the needs of the community 

 
(b) the possible impact of the 2012 Olympics on the Borough and the legacy that 

will give the residents of the Borough 
 
 will effectively complete the work of the Panel.   It is therefore proposed that the 

Panel be discontinued, with the proviso that Members are encouraged to attend the 
London Olympic bid roadshows and discuss how to get the best from the bid for local 
people, and that the work continues throughout the current financial year and 
beyond, namely: 

 
2. To establish an electronic recreational/leisure activities directory, similar to the best 

practice example used at Medway Borough Council; 
 
3. For Council officers to work closer in the preparation of recreational activities, fees 

and charges for all Council owned and managed facilities, particularly dual-use sports 
centres and those facilities managed by the Leisure and Community Services 
Division to ensure that an approach is adopted to encompass the principle to reduce 
barriers to participation; 

 
4. For the Council to give full support, raise awareness and recognise the importance 

that culture, in its broadest sense, contributes to improving residents’ quality of life 
within the Borough and visitors’ perceptions of the Borough; 

 

AGENDA ITEM 7

Page 21



 
5. For the Council to ensure that, through the Master Planning process associated with 

regeneration opportunities within the Borough, due consideration is given to 
recreational/leisure facilities under the Central Government’s Sustainable 
Communities guidelines; 

 
6. That, through the process of attaining self management by the Community 

Associations of the Community Halls, the lease agreement ensures greater diverse 
use of the facilities by the community groups under-represented in the Borough; and 

 
7. To actively endorse and take part in, when the opportunity arises, the Pan-London 

initiative which allows free swimming to take place in school holiday periods. 
 
Reason 
 
To support as champions, sport, leisure and recreation and raise the awareness of the 
impact of an active life style within the community. 
 
Contacts: 
Councillor J R Denyer 
 
Valerie Dowdell 

 
Lead Member 
 
 
Democratic and Electoral 
Services 

 
Tel: 0208 227 2116 
E-mail: john.denyer@lbbd.gov.uk 
 
Tel: 0208 227 2756 
Fax: 020 8227 2171 
E-mail: valerie.dowdell@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 At its meeting on 20 November 2002, the Scrutiny Management Board (SMB) agreed 

to set up a Scrutiny Panel to examine the provision of leisure facilities within the 
Borough. 

 
2. Membership 
 
2.1 The membership of the Panel comprised Councillors J R Denyer (Lead Member), B 

Cook, Mrs D Hunt, Mrs C T Osborn and L R T Waker. 
 
2.2 Ian Brown, independent leisure consultant, was appointed as the Panel’s external 

representative. 
 
2.3 Allan Aubrey, Head of Leisure and Community Services, was the lead client officer, 

Lawrence Ashelford, Policy Manager, Social Services Department was the 
independent support officer and Valerie Dowdell, Democratic and Electoral Services, 
supported the Panel. 

 
2.4 Other officers who have attended the Panel included: 
 

• Teresa Parish, Group Manager, Leisure Community Services, Leisure and 
Environmental Services Department 

• Elaine Bevis, Group Manager, Leisure Centres Management, Leisure and 
Environmental Services Department 

Page 22



 
• Fiona Bevan, General Inspector-PE, Inspection and Advisory Service, Education, 

Arts and Libraries Department 
• Stephanie Goldsmith, Procurement Officer, Finance Department 
• Mick Beackon, Community Development Manager, Corporate Strategy 

Department 
 
2.5 Because of her interest in sport, particularly swimming, the late Councillor Mrs 

Cridland attended a number of the Panel meetings as an observer.   The Panel paid 
tribute to Mrs Cridland’s enthusiasm for, and promotion of, sport within the Borough. 

 
3. Terms of Reference 
 
3.1 The terms of reference of the Panel were: 
 

(i) To investigate the range and provision of leisure facilities across the Borough 
(both Council and private) and whether these offer residents adequate choice 
and availability 

 
(ii) In doing so, to examine costs and usage of facilities and consider any areas of 

duplicated provision 
 

(iii) To explore any opportunities for better value, perhaps through joint ventures 
 

(iv) To have regard to equalities and diversity issues 
 

(v) To report back with findings and any recommendations 
 
4. Work Programme 
 
4.1 The Panel met on the following dates – 7 May, 11 June, 16 July, 3 September, 3 

October and 6 November 2003 and 27 April 2004. 
 
4.2 At the initial meeting of the Panel on 7 May 2003, the Head of Leisure and 

Community Services gave a verbal report, setting the scene for leisure and 
recreation and highlighting some historic points decided upon by the Council which 
have influenced the way leisure has developed in the Borough.   He also gave 
information about work that has been, or is being, carried out within his Division, 
such as: 

 
• Long term options for managing leisure centres within the Borough 
• Fees and charges review 
• Equalities and diversities, impact on the service and the way it is delivered 

 
It was noted that the Council provides a limited amount of services, a reasonable 
amount being provided by the private and voluntary sector. 

 
4.3 At its meeting on 11 June 2003 the Panel received a report from the Head of Leisure 

and Community Services setting out options for the panel to consider with regard to 
the scope of their investigations into leisure facilities within the Borough.   The Panel 
considered the options, bearing in mind the timescale for the work of the Panel and 
resource implications within departments, and decided to proceed with the following: 

 

Page 23



 
‘The Scrutiny Panel, together with officers, explores the diversity of Council 
facilities offered within the Borough with a view to comparing the quality and 
cost of each facility. 

 
The aim being to submit a report to the Executive to highlight good practice in 
the public sector related to management of activities within the buildings, and 
fees and charges that align with the principles of equalities and diversity.’ 

 
The Panel decided initially to focus on gathering information relating primarily to 
leisure/recreational activities that take place in Council owned buildings, such as 
leisure centres, including dual-use facilities and community halls.   The aim would be 
to bring this information together in a directory to be used by staff and the public and 
then produce a report that would highlight possible shortfalls or duplication of specific 
sports or activities within the Borough. 

 
As part of its work, the Panel wanted to look at information relating to the needs and 
requirements of local people, particularly for certain groups such as young people, 
the over 50s, black and minority ethnic groups and disabled people. 

 
Issues relating to the need for a common approach/standards for both Department of 
Leisure and Environmental Services and the Department of Education, Arts and 
Libraries facilities were discussed, for instance standard opening times for all the 
facilities. 

 
4.4 Mick Beackon, Community Development Manager, attended the meeting held on 16 

July 2003 to present a report outlining the positive action being taken to actively 
promote equalities and diversity in Community Halls, commenting on pricing 
arrangements and setting out the activities taking place in community halls.   Mention 
was also made of a report seeking to accelerate the Community Strategy which 
aimed to pass the management and cost of running Community Halls to Community 
Associations.   It was felt that the terms of the lease agreement with the Community 
Associations should be used to ensure a greater diverse use of the facilities by the 
community groups under-represented in the Borough. 

 
 The Panel also received a progress report on the Leisure Activities Directory, which 

gave an update on the actions taken by officers to gather information and set out the 
cost implications relating to internet/hard copy versions of the directory.   It was 
pointed out that there was no budget for the directory and it would have to be paid 
for out of existing budgets.   The cost could be reduced if the circulation was reduced 
to an electronic format, which would be available in the libraries and on the web site. 

 
4.5 After receiving an update on the work of the Leisure Facilities Scrutiny Panel, the 

Scrutiny Management Board at its meeting on 23 July 2003 re-iterated that the 
Panel’s original terms of reference must be adhered to, in that it was asked to look at 
all leisure activities across the Borough, including both Council and private facilities, 
and consider leisure in the widest sense, including activities such as arts, crafts, 
sports, dressmaking, horseriding, archery, bridge, etc.   The Board acknowledged 
that this was a large task and gave the Panel an extension of time for their work. 

 
4.6 At their meeting on 3 September 2003, the Panel received a draft interim report for 

submission to the Scrutiny Management Board which outlined the background to the 
Panel’s decision to gather information to produce a Leisure Activities Directory, 
actions to date and actions planned for the next six months.   As part of the process 

Page 24



 
around this, discussions had been held with Corporate Communications officers, 
who strongly advocated an electronically produced directory, which would greatly 
reduce the cost and could be easily maintained.   This could be accessed from all 
Borough Libraries and downloaded from the Council’s website.   ‘Hot links’ from the 
directory to other sites could also be introduced.   Again, the major concern was that 
there was no dedicated budget for the directory. 

 
 The Panel were advised that information for the directory would be sought using 

advertisements and free editorial in the local press for clubs, as well as the sports 
local league officials that did not use Council facilities, to give information to the 
Council about their facilities and activities.   By using the media to gather information 
from all sources, it was hoped to attract contact from clubs outside the mainstream, 
details of which could be fed into the directory.   This would address the Scrutiny 
Management Board’s directive that the Panel looked at all leisure activities across 
the Borough, including both Council and private facilities, and consider leisure in its 
widest sense, including arts, crafts, horseriding, bridge, etc.   Once the information 
was collected, it was proposed to carry out a desktop exercise of all the information 
received, which would provide a gap analysis and highlight any overlap/duplication of 
activities in the Borough. 

 
 One of the main pieces of work related to the way the directory would be constructed 

and it was thought that it would be useful for the Panel to see some examples of best 
practice web sites from other Boroughs. 

 
 Councillor Porter, then Lead Member for Leisure, attended the meeting and 

expanded on the focus of the Panel and the direction it should be taking. 
 
 The Panel felt that their first step should be the production of the Leisure Activities 

Directory, which would show the amount and variety of leisure provision in the 
Borough and enable them to then consider an ongoing programme, focussing on all 
groups, with particular emphasis on social inclusion. 

 
4.7 The Panel met on 3 October 2003 to view Council websites from Medway, Camden, 

Hertfordshire, Birmingham, Croydon, Devon, Waltham Forest, Waverley, West 
Sussex and Brent, in order to analyse the way they had set out information relating 
to leisure and recreational activities, which would be of assistance when considering 
the style and format for the proposed Leisure Activities Directory.   Medway was 
considered the best site overall. 

 
 It was confirmed that it was not proposed to charge organisations initially for putting 

information on the website as the aim was to make people active and make it as 
easy as possible to be active. 

 
 The Panel was advised that it had not proved possible to get free editorial from the 

local press, so the cost for the advertisements to gather information for the directory 
would be paid for out of the Head of Leisure and Community Services’ budget.   
However, all the information was now available from community halls and 
information was awaited from schools.   It was hoped that the information from the 
desk top analysis would be available for the next meeting. 

 

Page 25



 
4.8 At their meeting on 6 November 2003, the Panel was advised that there had been a 

very poor response to the advertisements for information, so it was proposed that the 
Club Liaison Officer would contact clubs in the existing Sports Development 
Directory to ask for permission to place their details on the Council’s internet 
directory, which could form the base of the Leisure/Recreational Directory.   An 
article would also be placed in the December 2003 edition of the Citizen.   Because 
of the lack of response to the advertisements, the desktop analysis had not taken 
place and, in view of the work that still needed to be done, it was proposed that the 
next meeting of the Panel be arranged early in the new year.   It was noted that 
information was still awaited from schools. 

 
 It was brought to the Panel’s attention that: 
 

• Consultants commissioned by the Council had produced a Leisure Needs 
Assessment for the Borough, which provided information with regard to the 
provision of the leisure centres now and into the future and outlined aims and 
policies for officers to work with to achieve this.   The report covered both facilities 
in the Borough and those in neighbouring authorities that impact on the Borough. 

 
• A meeting had taken place with managers from the dual use educational facilities 

within the Borough.   A general discussion took place about the adoption of the 
policy that the Council has agreed, the main points of the policy being: 

 
‘All Council operated Education Dual Use Leisure Facilities must actively promote 
and positively encourage community use of their facilities.   This should be 
reflected and clearly demonstrated within: 

 
¾ Relevant business plans for the facility and its operations 
¾ Pricing structures 
¾ Programmes of use 
¾ Grant Applications’ 

 
The managers were keen to work closely with the Council but needed to address 
concerns about the policy and issues around their business plans and income 
targets. 

 
• Work was being undertaken on a new Leisure Development Plan to replace the 

Leisure Activities Strategy.   This would highlight if there was a shortfall in leisure 
provision, what sort of shortfall and how much it would cost to fill that gap. 

 
4.9 The Panel met on 27 April 2004 and considered a report bringing together the work 

done to analyse the provision of leisure and recreational activities within the Borough 
and outlining possible ways forward for the Borough’s facilities and activities to be 
made more accessible by all sections of the community. 

 
 The potential impact on the Borough of the 2012 Olympics was noted and issues 

relating to raising the profile of the Borough and publicising local talent through this 
were discussed. 

 
Members expressed concerns about the difficulties with regard to transport in 
relation to the changes within Community Halls, highlighting the fact that people 
often did not have a problem going elsewhere, but with the transport to get them 
there. 

Page 26



 
5. Equalities and Diversity 
 
5.1 Equalities and diversity issues have, and continue to be, given a high priority in the 

work being done by the Council on recreational/leisure facilities.   The Panel, when 
deciding how to take their work forward, agreed that they would explore the diversity 
of Council facilities within the Borough and compare the quality and cost of each 
facility.   They also considered the positive action being taken to actively promote 
equalities and diversity in Community Halls.   The Panel consistently emphasised the 
need for the provision of facilities for the disabled and considered issues relating to 
the needs of different groups within the community, including young people, the over 
50s and black and minority ethnic groups. 

 
 It was felt there is a need for Council officers to work closer in the preparation of 

recreational activities, fees and charges for all Council owned and managed facilities, 
particularly dual-use sports centres and those facilities managed by the Leisure and 
Community Services Division, to ensure that an approach is adopted to encompass 
the principle to reduce barriers to participation. 

 
 In relation to the Mayor of London’s Strategy, the Panel considered a proposal that 

the Borough should take part, when the opportunity arises, in the Pan-London 
initiative, first piloted in the Boroughs of Newham, Tower Hamlets, Waltham Forest, 
Haringey and Greenwich, to allow free swimming to take place in the school 
holidays. 

 
6. Conclusions 
 
6.1 The Members of the Panel agreed that it was a useful exercise and the 

recommendations made will give a clear focus to the way the development of 
recreation and leisure activities can be managed over the next few years. 

 
6.2 Key issues are: 
 
 • Although it proved more difficult than anticipated to gather the information for 

the Leisure Activities Directory, it was agreed that officers should continue in 
their efforts to do this to produce the directory.   It was recognised that there is 
a need to overcome the reluctance of independent organisations to provide 
details of their activities, establishing trust and understanding that the Council 
wishes to help, not interfere, with their clubs. 

 
• The need to inform the regeneration strategy to ensure that recreational 

facilities are included. 
 
• The need to work closer with Education and engage more with headteachers 

to raise awareness of the benefits of shared facilities.   However, it was noted 
that it is against the law for schools to use their education funds to support 
community activities. 

 
• The need to break down barriers and encourage self-ownership of Community 

Halls. 
 

Page 27



 
• If London’s ‘Candidate City Status’ bid for the 2012 Olympics is successful it 

will have a substantial impact on the Borough over the next eight years.   
Mayesbrook Park athletics track and Goresbrook Leisure Centre have been 
identified as possible training facilities. 

 
• The Leisure Facilities Scrutiny Panel expressed concerns about lack of 

funding for this Scrutiny Panel and Scrutiny Panels generally.   Members felt 
that there should be sufficient funding available for Panels to carry out their 
work efficiently and that there were many other suitable topics for scrutiny if 
the money was available to establish them. 

 
 
 
 
Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
Public copies of agendas and minutes of the Leisure facilities Scrutiny Panel meetings held 
on 7 May, 11 June, 16 July, 3 September, 3 October and 6 November 2003 and 27 April 
2004. 

Page 28



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

7 SEPTEMBER 2004 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF HOUSING & HEALTH 
 

FOOD SAFETY BUSINESS PLAN 2004 / 2005 
 

FOR DECISION 

All Local Authorities are required by the Food Standards Act 1999 to produce a Food 
Safety Service Business Plan. The Act requires Food Safety Service Business Plans to be 
submitted to members for approval to ensure local transparency and accountability. 
 
Summary 
 
This report sets out the Food Safety Service Plan for the year 2004/05. The plan follows 
guidance given by the Food Standards Agency in the ‘Framework Agreement on Local 
Authority Food Law Enforcement’. The plan forms the basis on which the Food Safety 
Service will be delivered. 
 
Ward Affected - All wards 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Executive is asked to approve the plan prior to its submission to the Assembly on the 6 
October 2004 for formal adoption. 
 
Reason 
 
• To give clear details of the Council's Food Safety service; 
• To describe how it will operate in the coming year; and 
• To show how it contributes to and supports others in delivering the Corporate 

Objectives to the community as a whole. 
 
Contact: 
Anne Cowdry 

 
Team Leader 
Commercial Inspections 

 
Tel: 020 8227 5640 
Fax: 020 8227 5699 
Minicom: 020 8227 5755 
E-mail: anne.cowdry@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 2003/04 has been a busy year for the Food Safety Service. The Plan, which has 

been forwarded to Members before this meeting, includes a review of the year’s 
performance and describes how the service will be provided over the coming year. 

 
1.2 The Plan details how the Food Safety Service in Health and Consumer Services, 

contributes to and supports others in delivering the Corporate Objectives to the 
Community as a whole. We realise that we have a unique position in the Council by 
visiting around one thousand business owners each year and we strive to use our 
time with these businesses to the best effect.  

 

AGENDA ITEM 8

Page 29



1.3 During these visits we promote the reputation of the Council, advise them about 
recent changes in their legal responsibilities and tell them about training 
opportunities we may be offering and of course inspect, tackling any deficiencies 
found where they may be putting the wellbeing of consumers at risk. 

 
1.4 This is the fourth annual Food Safety Service Business Plan and marks the end of 

another successful year for the food team. We have achieved our key performance 
indicator by completing 100% of our high-risk food hygiene and food standards 
inspections.   

 
1.5 The food team achieved 86% of the planned food hygiene inspections and 90% of 

the planned food standards inspections.  One of the major factors for not completing 
100% was that staffing levels dropped.  This was due to two experienced members 
of the team leaving, maternity leave and major illness.  This year the Team is fully 
staffed again and hopefully no further major illnesses will occur. 

 
1.6 The Food Team has firmly established a partnership arrangement with Barking 

College of Further Education to provide low cost easy access food hygiene training 
that is carefully tailored to meet the needs of the participants. This year we 
successfully trained members of the community with Bengali and Urdu as their first 
language. 

 
1.7 The White Paper "The Food Standards Agency – A Force for Change" identified the 

need for stronger links between central and local government on food law 
enforcement. It also identified the Food Standards Agency (the ‘FSA’) as having a 
key role overseeing local authority enforcement activities. It envisaged the FSA 
setting and monitoring standards and auditing local authorities’ food law 
enforcement activities to ensure that work is effective and consistent. The Food 
Standards Act 1999 empowers the FSA to monitor and audit local authorities. 

 
1.8 In September 2000, after a period of consultation, the FSA issued a “Framework 

Agreement on Local Authority Food Law Enforcement”. This document provides the 
framework for closer liaison between the FSA and the Council. It includes the 
following components: 

 
• service planning guidance; 
• enforcement standards setting out key aspects of the enforcement approach to 

be used by local authorities; 
• an enhanced enforcement monitoring scheme. (The Council has measures in 

place to ensure that any information requested by the FSA can be provided.); 
and 

• an audit scheme providing in depth qualitative information on enforcement 
activity. 

 
1.9 The plan set out in this report follows the guidance in the Framework Agreement (as 

required by the FSA). 
 
2. Food Standards Agency Audit 
 
2.1 The food Team received an Audit from the Food Standards Agency in March 2004.  

The audit team attended for three days and examined the procedures and work that 
the team have done over the last five years.   

Page 30



 
2.2 The audit report is currently in draft form but has highlighted that the team’s 

procedures were in line with their requirements and also gave examples of good 
practice.  However they have said that further development of the Services’ quality 
management systems and internal audit schemes is required. 

 
2.3 An action plan approved by the Food Standards Agency has been produced to 

address those items highlighted in the report.  A revisit by the Agency is not 
envisaged. 

  
3. General Guidelines 
 
3.1  The plan covers the following areas: 

 
Service Aims and Objectives, including the clear link made by the Balanced 
Scorecard between the Council’s Community Priorities and 2020 vision and the 
objectives set by the Food Safety Service; 
 
• Background, including a description of the Borough and it’s political structure; 
• Service Delivery, including the policy the Council adopts when inspecting food 

businesses, dealing with food complaints and advising and educating food 
business owners and staff; 

• The resources we will put into the Food Safety Service;  
• How we ensure that we consistently provide a high quality, easily accessible 

service that is relevant to all service users; and 
• How we will review our performance over the year and how we will use this 

information to plan again next year. 
 
4.  Conclusions 
 
4.1 The Food Safety Business Plan 2004/05 sets out the expected performance and 

service delivery for the coming year. 
 
5. Consultation 
 
5.1 Consultation has been carried out with: 
 

Councillor McKenzie – Portfolio holder for Cleaner, Greener, Safer 
Health Protection Agency 
Primary Care Trust 

 
 
 
The following Background Papers were used in the preparation of this report:-: 
• Barking & Dagenham Food Safety Service Business Plan 2004/05 - London Borough 

of Barking & Dagenham, April 2004. 
• Framework Agreement on Local Authority Food Law Enforcement - Food Standards 

Agency, September 2000. 
• The Food Standards Agency - A Force for Change - Government White Paper, January 

1998. 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

7 SEPTEMBER 2004 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF HOUSING AND HEALTH 
 

HEALTH AND SAFETY BUSINESS PLAN 2004 / 2005 
 

FOR DECISION 

All Local Authorities are required by statutory guidance issued under the Health and Safety 
at Work etc. Act 1974 to produce a Health and Safety Service Business Plan. The Act 
requires that the Health and Safety Service Business Plans are approved by members, to 
ensure local transparency and accountability. 
 
Summary 
 
This report sets out the Health and Safety Service Plan for the year 2003/04. The plan 
follows guidance given to all Local Authorities by the Health and Safety Commission in their 
statutory guidance document “Health and Safety in Local Authority Enforced Sectors”. The 
plan forms the basis on which the Health and Safety Service will be delivered. 
 
Ward Affected: All wards. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Executive is asked to approve the plan. 
 
Reason 
 
• To give clear details of the Council's Health and Safety service; 
• To describe how it will operate in the coming year; and 
• To show how it contributes to and supports others in delivering the Corporate 

Objectives to the community as a whole. 
 
Contact: 
Anne Cowdry 

 
Team Leader Commercial 
Inspections 

 
Tel: 020 8227 5640 
Fax: 020 8227 5699 
Minicom: 020 8227 5755 
Email: anne.cowdry@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 This is the third annual Health and Safety Service Business Plan and follows 

statutory guidance issued by the Health and Safety Commission (the 'HSC'). In 
recent years a number of high profile national safety issues, most notably on the 
railways, have brought into focus the need for a new emphasis in Health and Safety 
Enforcement. 

 
1.2 Chair of the HSC, Bill Callaghan, and the Deputy Prime Minister launched the 

Revitalising Health and Safety Strategy Statement in June 2000. It includes a 44-
point action plan designed to achieve a 20% reduction in cases of work related ill 
health and a 10% reduction in fatal and major accidents at work. 

AGENDA ITEM 9

Page 33



 
1.3 2003/04 has been an excellent year for the Health and Safety Service. We have 

completed 94% of our scheduled inspections and 100% of all notifiable accidents 
investigated. 

 
1.4 More partnership working took place this year.  In March the team worked closely 

with the Health and Safety Executive on a workshop on slips, trips and falls within 
the workplace.  Further work is planned for the coming year. 

 
2. General Guidelines 
 

2.1 The plan, which has been previously circulated to members, covers the following 
areas: 
• Service Aims and Objectives, including the clear link made by the Balanced 

Scorecard between the Council’s Community Priorities and 2020 vision and the 
objectives set by the Health and Safety Service; 

• Background, including a description of the Borough and it’s political structure; 
• Service Delivery, including the methods the Health and Safety Team will use to 

contribute, at a local level, to the delivery of the HSCs National Priorities; 
• The resources we will put into the Health and Safety Service; 
• How we ensure that we consistently provide a high quality, easily accessible 

service that is relevant to all service users; and 
• How we will review our performance over the year and how we will use this 

information to plan again next year. 
 
3. Conclusions 
 
3.1 The Health and Safety Business Plan 2004/05 sets out the expected performance 

and service delivery for the coming year. 
 
4. Consultation 
 
4.1 Consultation has been carried out with: 

Councillor McKenzie – Portfolio holder for Cleaner, Greener, Safer 
Health and Safety Executive 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Background papers used to prepare this report: 
 
• Barking and Dagenham Health and Safety Service Business Plan 2004/05 – London 

Borough of Barking and Dagenham, April 2003. 
• Revitalising Health and Safety Strategy Statement - Health and Safety Commission, 

June 2000 
 

Page 34



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

7 SEPTEMBER 2004 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
 

THIRD ANNUAL REPORT OF THE REGENERATION 
STRATEGY, AN URBAN RENAISSANCE IN EAST 
LONDON 
 

FOR DECISION 

This report presents the third Annual Report on ‘The Regeneration Strategy, An Urban 
Renaissance in East London’ as previously requested by the Executive  
 
Summary 
 
In November 2001 the Council’s regeneration strategy, An Urban Renaissance in East 
London was published.  The strategy set out a number of key actions, based on the 
Community Priorities, to regenerate the Borough.  Attached is the third Annual Report of 
the strategy.  It sets out what steps have been taken to achieve the targets set out in the 
regeneration strategy, during the year from 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004. 
 
Key achievements include: 
 

• Dagenham Dock roads acquired by the London Development Agency 
• A new Joint Venture Company was set up to ensure delivery at Barking Riverside 

and announced by John Prescott, the Deputy Prime Minister 
• Childcare spaces have continued to increase since 2001 with well over 800 new 

places to date. 
• The new Charlecote Road  housing development has won four separate Best New 

Development awards. 
• Eastbrookend Country Park and  the Chase Nature Reserve have gained Local 

Nature Reserve Designation.   
• All targets for smoking cessation were met this year 

 
Recommendation 
 
The Executive is recommended to agree the Annual Report. 
 
Reason 
 
The Executive requested annual reports on progress. 
 
Contact Officer: 
Jeremy Grint 

 
Head of Regeneration 

 
Tel: 020 8227 2443 
Fax: 020 8227 3231 
E-mail: jeremy.grint@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 10

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f

A
n

 U
rb

a
n

 R
e

n
a

is
s

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 E
a

s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 2
0

0
3

-0
4

Page 37



A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
2

C
o
n
te

n
ts

3
P
re

fa
c
e
 b

y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
lo

r 
S
id

 K
a
ll
a
r

4
In

tr
o
d
u
c
ti

o
n

6
L
o

n
d
o

n
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e

1
0

B
a
rk

in
g
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 R

iv
e
r 

R
o
d
in

g
 A

re
a

1
1

E
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 S

k
il
ls

1
2

L
o
c
a
l 

Jo
b
s
 a

n
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

1
4

H
o
u
s
in

g

1
5

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t

1
7

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

1
8

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l

Page 38



In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti

o
n

b
y

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo

r
K

a
ll
a
r

I 
a
m

 p
le

a
s
e
d
 t

o
 i

n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 t

h
ir

d
 A

n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f

B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

’s
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

A
n

U
rb

a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
. 

 I
t 

s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e

s
te

p
s
 w

e
 a

re
 t

a
k
in

g
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
’s

C
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 P

ri
o
ri

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
c
h
 o

u
r 

o
v
e
ra

ll
 2

0
2

0
v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
.

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 s

o
m

e
 s

ig
n
if

ic
a
n
t 

s
te

p
s
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 i
n
 t

h
e

la
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

  
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 e

n
te

re
d
 i

n
to

 n
e
w

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 o
u
r 

p
la

n
s
. 

 W
o
rk

b
e
g
a
n
 o

n
 k

e
y
 s

it
e
s
 i

n
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 w

e
 m

a
d
e
 g

o
o
d

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 D
o
c
k
 p

ro
je

c
t.

  
th

e
b
o
ro

u
g
h
 i

s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 k

n
o
w

n
 f

o
r 

g
o
o
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
,

w
it

h
 a

w
a
rd

 w
in

n
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 l
ik

e
 t

h
e
 J

o
h
n
 P

e
rr

y
N

u
rs

e
ry

 a
n
d
 C

h
a
rl

e
c
o
te

 R
o
a
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
.

I 
w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 t

h
a
n
k
 a

ll
 t

h
o
s
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 f

o
r

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 i

n
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 f
o
r 

th
e
ir

e
ff

o
rt

s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 l

a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

  
I 

lo
o
k
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
o
 w

o
rk

in
g

w
it

h
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 a

n
d
 a

ll
 o

u
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 b

u
il
d
 o

n
fu

rt
h
e
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
r.

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo

r 
S
id

 K
a
ll
a
r

L
e
a
d
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 

Ju
n
e
 2

0
0

4

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
3

Page 39



In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti

o
n

T
h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e
 t

h
ir

d
 A

n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t

L
o

n
d
o

n
, 

th
e
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y

fo
r 

th
e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
B
a
rk

in
g

a
n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

. 
 T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 s
e
ts

o
u
t 

th
e
 w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

o
n
e

in
 t

h
e
 p

a
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

(2
0

0
3

/
0

4
) 

to
im

p
le

m
e
n
t 

th
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
.

O
u
r 

k
e
y
 o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
 a

re
:

·
 

R
a
is

in
g
 e

d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
a
l 

a
tt

a
in

m
e
n
t

·
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
k
il
ls

 a
n
d
 l

if
e
lo

n
g
 l

e
a
rn

in
g
 

a
n
d
 i

m
p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 

e
m

p
lo

y
a
b
il
it

y
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 

p
e
o
p
le

·
 

W
id

e
n
in

g
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 

a
n
d
 a

tt
ra

c
ti

n
g
 w

e
ll
 p

a
id

 j
o
b
s

·
 

W
id

e
n
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

h
o
ic

e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
a
v
a
il
a
b
le

 w
it

h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 

·
 

P
ro

v
id

in
g
 n

e
w

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 l
in

k
s
 

b
o
th

 w
it

h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 t

o
a
re

a
s
 o

f 
g
ro

w
th

 o
u
ts

id
e

·
 

B
u
il
d
in

g
 c

lo
s
e
r 

a
n
d
 m

o
re

 
e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 t

o
 d

e
li
v
e
r

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h
in

 a
n
d
 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
4

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

s
te

p
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
s
e

o
b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 l

a
s
t 

y
e
a
r:

·
A

 n
e
w

 J
o
in

t 
V

e
n
tu

re
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y
 

w
a
s
 s

e
t 

u
p
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 d
e
li
v
e
ry

 a
t

B
a
rk

in
g
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e
 a

n
d
 

a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 J

o
h
n
 P

re
s
c
o
tt

, 
th

e
 D

e
p
u
ty

 P
ri

m
e
 M

in
is

te
r

·
 

C
h
il
d
c
a
re

 s
p
a
c
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 

c
o

n
ti

n
u
e
d
 t

o
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
 s

in
c
e
 

2
0

0
1

 w
it

h
 w

e
ll
 o

v
e
r 

8
0

0
 n

e
w

 
p
la

c
e
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

.
·

 
T

h
e
 n

e
w

 C
h
a
rl

e
c
o
te

 R
o
a
d
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 w

o
n
 

fo
u
r 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
 B

e
s
t 

N
e
w

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
w

a
rd

s
.

·
 

E
a
s
tb

ro
o
k
e
n
d
 C

o
u
n
tr

y
 P

a
rk

 a
n
d

th
e
 C

h
a
s
e
 N

a
tu

re
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 h

a
v
e
 

g
a
in

e
d
 L

o
c
a
l 

N
a
tu

re
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 

D
e
s
ig

n
a
ti

o
n
. 

 
·

 
A

ll
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

s
m

o
k
in

g
 

c
e
s
s
a
ti

o
n
 w

e
re

 m
e
t 

th
is

 y
e
a
r

O
u
r 

k
e
y
 a

im
 f

o
r 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 

in
 

B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 i
s
 

to
 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
s
p
e
ri

ty
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 

p
e
o
p
le

. 
 W

e
 a

re
 d

e
li
g
h
te

d
th

a
t 

th
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 1
4

.6
%

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 i

n
c
o
m

e
 i

n
 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
0

0
 

a
n
d
 2

0
0

2
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i

s
 t

h
e
 b

ig
g
e
s
t

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i

n
 a

n
y
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
.

Page 40



5
A

n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n

L
e
a
d
in

g
a
n
d

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
a
n

U
rb

a
n

R
e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e

in
E
a
s
t

L
o
n
d
o
n

D
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 l

a
s
t 

y
e
a
r,

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il

h
a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
c
ro

s
s
-

c
u
tt

in
g
 B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
. 

 T
h
is

 h
a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt

e
d
 i

n
s
ig

n
if

ic
a
n
t 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

a
y
 w

e
m

a
n
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 l

e
a
d
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 i

n
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
, 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

th
e
 o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
 o

f 
o
u
r 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
n
d
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l

S
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
.

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt

 o
f 

th
e
 B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
R

e
v
ie

w
, 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
:

·
 

C
re

a
te

d
 a

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

to
 

ta
k
e
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
n
d
 l

e
a
d
 t

h
e
 

c
re

a
ti

o
n
 o

f 
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s

·
 

In
v
e
s
te

d
 £

7
0

0
,0

0
0

 o
v
e
r 

tw
o
 

y
e
a
rs

 i
n
 a

d
d
it

io
n
a
l 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i

n
 t

w
o
 n

e
w

 d
iv

is
io

n
s

·
 

E
s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 s

tr
o

n
g
 a

n
d
 r

o
b
u
s
t 

o
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 

a
n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 

in
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 B

o
a
rd

 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 a

 
S
ta

tu
to

ry
 
P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 B
o
a
rd

, 
b
o
th

 
C

h
a
ir

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti

v
e
 

·
 

A
c
ti

v
e
ly

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

d
 i

n
 

R
e
g
io

n
a
l 

a
n
d
 n

a
ti

o
n
a
l 

p
o
li
c
y
 

d
e
b
a
te

s
 a

n
d
 b

e
e
n
 c

ri
ti

c
a
ll
y
 

in
fl

u
e
n
ti

a
l 

in
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
o
li
c
y
 d

e
b
a
te

s
. 

In
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r,
 w

e
h
a
v
e
 l

ia
is

e
d
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 w
it

h
 t

h
e
 

O
D

P
M

 (
O

ff
ic

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

D
e
p
u
ty

 P
ri

m
e
 M

in
is

te
r)

, 
th

e
 

G
re

a
te

r 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 A

s
s
e
m

b
ly

 (
G

L
A

)
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 T

h
a
m

e
s
 G

a
te

w
a
y
 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
m

e
n
t 

a
n
 U

rb
a
n
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
 

(U
D

C
) 

fo
r 

th
e
 T

h
a
m

e
s
 G

a
te

w
a
y
 

Page 41



A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
6

M
a
jo

r
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s

in
th

e
A

re
a
s

o
f

O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

y

L
o
n
d
o
n

R
iv

e
rs

id
e

L
o

n
d
o

n
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e
 e

x
te

n
d
s
 a

c
ro

s
s

s
ix

 s
q
u
a
re

 k
il
o
m

e
tr

e
s
 a

lo
n
g
 t

h
e

T
h
a
m

e
s
 f

ro
m

 B
a
rk

in
g
 C

re
e
k
 t

o
 t

h
e

e
d
g
e
 o

f 
G

re
a
te

r 
L
o

n
d
o

n
.

It
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
L
o

n
d
o

n
’s

 m
o
s
t

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
it

e
s

in
c
lu

d
in

g
, 

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 D
o
c
k
, 

S
o
u
th

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 a
n
d
 B

a
rk

in
g
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e
. 

Page 42



A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
7

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 D
o
c
k

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 D
o
c
k
 a

s
 a

 '
S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

P
a
rk

' 
(S

IP
) 

c
o

n
ti

n
u
e
d

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

2
0

0
3

/
0

4
. 

T
h
e
 P

a
rk

 w
il
l

b
e
 a

n
 i

n
n
o
v
a
ti

v
e
 c

lu
s
te

r 
o
f

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
h
o
w

 c
a
s
e
 f

o
r 

ta
c
k
li
n
g
 L

o
n
d
o

n
's

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
, 

w
h
il
e

d
e
li
v
e
ri

n
g
 a

 g
o
o
d
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
jo

b
s

a
n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
.

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 D
o
c
k
's

 p
ri

v
a
te

ly
 o

w
n
e
d

a
n
d
 p

o
o
rl

y
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 r

o
a
d
s
 h

a
v
e

lo
n
g
 b

e
e
n
 a

 b
a
rr

ie
r 

to
 i

n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.

A
 m

a
jo

r 
le

a
p
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 i
n
 t

h
e

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 D
o
c
k

w
a
s
 t

h
e
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 o

f 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 r

o
a
d
s
. 

T
h
e
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 i

s
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 o

n
d
e
li
v
e
ri

n
g
 a

 £
7

 t
o
 £

9
 m

 u
p
g
ra

d
e

o
f 

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 D
o
c
k
's

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
u
ri

n
g
 2

0
0

4
/
0

5
.

T
h
e
 C

e
n
tr

e
p
ie

c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

P
a
rk

 i
s
 t

h
e

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 f

o
r 

L
o

n
d
o

n
. 

 L
a
s
t

y
e
a
r,

 e
x
p
re

s
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
In

te
re

s
t 

w
e
re

s
o
u
g
h
t 

fr
o
m

 c
o

n
s
o
rt

ia
 i

n
te

re
s
te

d
in

 b
u
il
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
.

T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl

y
 b

e
in

g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d

a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 f

o
rm

e
d
.

Page 43



A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
8

B
a
rk

in
g
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e
 

In
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

0
3

 J
o
h
n
 P

re
s
c
o
tt

,
th

e
 D

e
p
u
ty

 P
ri

m
e
 M

in
is

te
r,

a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
d
 t

h
e
 c

re
a
ti

o
n
 o

f 
a
 n

e
w

Jo
in

t 
V

e
n
tu

re
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

il
l

s
e
e
 E

n
g
li
s
h
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d

B
e
ll
w

a
y
 H

o
m

e
s
 s

h
a
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 B

a
rk

in
g

R
iv

e
rs

id
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

e
n
s
u
ri

n
g
 i

ts
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

.

2
0

0
3

 a
ls

o
 s

a
w

 t
h
e
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 

o
f

M
a
x
w

a
n
, 

a
 f

ir
m

 o
f 

D
u
tc

h
M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
n
e
rs

, 
b
y
 E

n
g
li
s
h

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
, 

th
e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 B

e
ll
w

a
y

H
o
m

e
s
. 

T
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t

a
s
k
e
d

w
it

h
 b

ri
n
g
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
 n

e
w

M
a
s
te

rp
la

n
 f

o
r 

B
a
rk

in
g
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e

to
 d

e
li
v
e
r 

1
0

,7
0

0
 n

e
w

 h
o
m

e
s
,

w
o
rk

in
g
 i

n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
, 

th
e
 G

re
a
te

r 
L
o

n
d
o

n
A

s
s
e
m

b
ly

  
a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

le
a
d

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
.

A
n
 i

n
it

ia
l 

p
u
b
li
c
 c

o
n
s
u
lt

a
ti

o
n
 o

n
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
to

o
k
 p

la
c
e
 i

n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0

0
4

. 
 I

t 
w

a
s

o
v
e
rw

h
e
lm

in
g
ly

 p
o
s
it

iv
e
, 

w
it

h
s
tr

o
n
g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

 t
h
e
 p

la
n
s
 t

o
o
p
e
n
 u

p
 t

h
e
 r

iv
e
r-

fr
o

n
t,

 b
u
il
d
 a

m
ix

 o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 i

n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 a

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 f

a
c
il
it

ie
s
.

A
n
 O

u
tl

in
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

fo
r 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

is
 a

n
ti

c
ip

a
te

d
in

 t
h
e
 A

u
tu

m
n
 o

f 
2

0
0

4
.

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 a

n
d
 E

n
g
li
s
h

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt

a
n
ts

 t
o
 l

o
o
k

a
t 

th
e
 l

a
n
d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 B

a
rk

in
g

R
iv

e
rs

id
e
 a

n
d
 i

n
v
e
s
ti

g
a
te

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

li
n
k
 t

h
e

n
e
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
it

h
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

re
s
id

e
n
ti

a
l 

a
n
d
 i

n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

a
re

a
s
. 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 J
o

R
ic

h
a
rd

s
o

n
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 C

o
m

p
le

x
,

C
a
s
tl

e
 G

re
e
n
, 

s
ta

rt
e
d
 o

n
 s

it
e
 i

n

Ja
n
u
a
ry

 2
0

0
4

 w
it

h
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
a
n
ti

c
ip

a
te

d
 i

n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0

0
5

.

C
o

n
c
e
p
t 

o
f 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

B
a
rk

in
g
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e

Page 44



A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
9

S
o
u
th

 D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 s

te
a
d
y

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 i

ts
 a

m
b
it

io
n
 o

f
c
re

a
ti

n
g
 a

 n
e
w

 u
rb

a
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 o

n
th

e
 l

a
n
d
 i

n
 S

o
u
th

 D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

re
le

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 F

o
rd

.

T
h
e
 L

D
A

 a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 W

e
s
t 

8
 t

o
m

a
s
te

rp
la

n
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
te

rn
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

s
it

e
 a

n
d
 s

tu
d
ie

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 l

o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
.

T
h
e
s
e
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

a
ti

o
n
 o

f 
a

n
e
w

 l
a
k
e
 a

s
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 p

ie
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 a
s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
fl

o
o
d
 s

to
ra

g
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it

y
. 

T
h
e
 L

D
A

 c
o

n
ti

n
u
e
d
 t

o
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

t 
C

h
e
q
u
e
rs

 C
o
rn

e
r 

in
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

p
u
ls

o
ry

P
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 a

n
d
 a

 p
u
b
li
c

in
q
u
ir

y
 d

a
te

 w
a
s
 a

n
n
o
u
n
c
e
d
 f

o
r

a
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0

4
.

D
e
m

o
li
ti

o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
in

t 
T

ri
m

 a
n
d

A
s
s
e
m

b
ly

 P
la

n
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

s
ta

rt
in

g
 t

h
e
 t

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n
 o

f 
th

e
a
re

a
.

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

a
rc

h
it

e
c
ts

 t
o
 i

n
v
e
s
ti

g
a
te

 t
h
e

re
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 b

lo
c
k
 o

f
s
h
o
p
s
 a

n
d
 f

la
ts

 a
t 

th
e
 j

u
n
c
ti

o
n
 o

f
G

o
re

s
b
ro

o
k
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 R

ip
p
le

 R
o
a
d
.

A
 c

o
n
c
e
p
t 

d
ra

w
in

g
 o

f 
S
o
u
th

 D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

Page 45



A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
1
0

B
a
rk

in
g

T
o
w

n
C

e
n
tr

e
a
n
d

th
e

R
iv

e
r

R
o
d
in

g
A

re
a

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 a

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
u
b
li
c
 A

g
e
n
c
ie

s
P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
w

it
h
 E

n
g
li
s
h

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 (

E
P
),

 t
h
e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

A
g
e
n
c
y

(L
D

A
) 

a
n
d

G
L
A

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
, 

to
 t

a
k
e

fo
rw

a
rd

 t
h
e
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
.

In
te

ri
m

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
, 

b
a
s
e
d

o
n
 t

h
e
 B

a
rk

in
g
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 P
la

n
 i

s
 b

e
in

g
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

 A
n
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 P

u
b
li
c

C
o

n
s
u
lt

a
ti

o
n
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 w

il
l 

b
e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

d
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

o
f 

2
0

0
4

.

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 m

ix
e
d
 t

e
n
u
re

S
t.

 A
n
n
’s

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
n

G
a
s
c
o
ig

n
e
 E

s
ta

te
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
.

F
ir

s
t 

n
o
m

in
a
ti

o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

re
q
u
e
s
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

is
d
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i

n
 S

p
ri

n
g

2
0

0
5

.

T
h
e
 B

lo
o
m

fi
e
ld

s
, 

C
le

v
e
la

n
d
s
,

W
a
k
e
ri

n
g
s
/
T

a
n
n
e
r 

 S
tr

e
e
t 

s
it

e
 w

a
s

s
o
ld

 t
o
 E

a
s
t 

T
h
a
m

e
s
 H

o
u
s
in

g
.

D
e
m

o
li
ti

o
n
 w

il
l 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 i

n
 M

a
y

2
0

0
4

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 J

e
s
ti

c
o
 a

n
d
 W

h
il
e
s

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

il
l 

b
e

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
r.

P
la

n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 w

a
s
 g

ra
n
te

d
fo

r 
th

e
 F

u
rl

o
n
g
 H

o
m

e
s

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 A

b
b
e
y
 R

o
a
d
.

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
 i

s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
g
in

 i
n

S
p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0

5
.

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

B
ro

a
d
w

a
y

T
h
e
a
tr

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
. 

 T
h
e

th
e
a
tr

e
 i

s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 o

p
e
n
 i

n
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

0
4

T
h
e
 T

o
w

n
 S

q
u
a
re

 p
ro

je
c
t 

 w
a
s

g
ra

n
te

d
 o

u
tl

in
e
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
. 

 S
ta

g
e

o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

n
e
w

 L
if

e
lo

n
g
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 C

e
n
tr

e
 h

a
s

b
e
e
n
 g

iv
e
n
 d

e
ta

il
e
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i

s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 s

ta
rt

 o
n
 s

it
e

in
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

0
4

. 
 T

h
is

 h
a
s

a
tt

ra
c
te

d
 £

3
m

 o
f 

O
D

P
M

 f
u
n
d
in

g

a
n
d
 i

s
 a

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 U

E
L

(U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
E
a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
),

B
a
rk

in
g
 C

o
ll
e
g
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il

a
n
d
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

U
rb

a
n
 C

a
ta

ly
s
t.

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 w

o
n
 £

2
m

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s
 f

u
n
d

(a
d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 O

ff
ic

e
 o

f 
th

e
D

e
p
u
ty

 P
ri

m
e
 M

in
is

te
r)

 t
o
 i

m
p
ro

v
e

th
e
 p

u
b
li
c
 r

e
a
lm

 i
n
 B

a
rk

in
g
 T

o
w

n
C

e
n
tr

e
. 

 T
o
 g

u
id

e
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

to
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
li
c
 r

e
a
lm

, 
w

e
 a

re
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 B
a
rk

in
g
 C

o
d
e
 f

o
r

S
tr

e
e
t 

fu
rn

it
u
re

 a
n
d
 p

a
v
in

g
 a

n
d

fo
u
r 

p
il
o
t 

a
re

a
s
 f

o
r

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
.

£
8

m
 o

f 
O

D
P
M

 F
u
n
d
in

g
  

w
a
s

a
w

a
rd

e
d
 f

o
r 

la
n
d
 a

s
s
e
m

b
ly

 t
o

e
n
a
b
le

 s
it

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

fo
r 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
.

S
tu

d
ie

s
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e

re
ta

il
 c

a
p
a
c
it

y
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
.

T
h
is

 i
s
 j

o
in

tl
y
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
, 

E
P
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 L

D
A

.

A
 s

tu
d
y
 i

n
to

 t
h
e
 l

in
k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

B
a
rk

in
g
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e
 a

n
d
 B

a
rk

in
g

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 a

s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 a

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
p
ro

je
c
t.

  
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 j

o
in

tl
y
 f

u
n
d
e
d

b
y
 E

P
, 

th
e
 L

D
A

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
.

Je
s
ti

c
o
 a

n
d
 W

h
il
e
s
  

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

B
lo

o
m

fi
e
ld

s
, 

C
le

v
e
la

n
d
s
 a

n
d
 W

a
k
e
ri

n
g
s
 s

it
e

Page 46



1
1

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n

E
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n

a
n
d

S
k
il
ls

O
u
r 

m
is

s
io

n
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t

fo
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 i

d
e
n
ti

fi
e
s

e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 t

o
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 f
u
tu

re
. 

 W
e

w
a
n
t 

h
ig

h
 l

e
v
e
ls

 o
f

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 b

e
 t

h
e

n
o
rm

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t

h
e

h
ig

h
e
r 

a
s
p
ir

a
ti

o
n
s
 o

f
re

s
id

e
n
ts

, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i

n
te

rm
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir

e
m

p
lo

y
a
b
il
it

y
 a

n
d
 e

a
rn

in
g

p
o
w

e
r.

B
a
s
ic

 S
k
il
ls

T
h
e
 A

d
u
lt

 B
a
s
ic

 S
k
il
ls

 I
n
it

ia
ti

v
e

c
o

n
ti

n
u
e
s
 t

o
 b

u
il
d
 c

a
p
a
c
it

y
 i

n
li
te

ra
c
y
, 

n
u
m

e
ra

c
y
 a

n
d
 E

S
O

L
(E

n
g
li
s
h
 f

o
r 

S
p
e
a
k
e
rs

 o
f 

O
th

e
r

L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
s
) 

to
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 S

k
il
ls

 f
o
r

L
if

e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
.

L
if

e
L
o

n
g
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

U
K

 O
n
li
n
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 L

e
a
rn

d
ir

e
c
t

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 i

s
 e

x
p
a
n
d
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
, 

b
ri

n
g
in

g
 l

e
a
rn

in
g

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 l

o
c
a
l

c
o
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s
.

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

h
e

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
S
e
c
to

r 
T

ra
in

in
g
 P

ro
v
id

e
rs

 N
e
tw

o
rk

w
it

h
 a

 k
e
y
 a

im
 o

f 
s
e
c
u
ri

n
g

m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

.

G
a
te

w
a
y
 t

o
 I

n
d
u
s
tr

y
 c

o
n
ti

n
u
e
d
 t

o
b
u
il
d
 t

h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it

y
 o

f
m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

re
rs

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

ra
in

in
g

in
it

ia
ti

v
e
s
.

A
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 U

E
L

(U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
E
a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
),

B
a
rk

in
g
 C

o
ll
e
g
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 i

s
ta

k
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f

B
a
rk

in
g
 L

if
e
lo

n
g
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 C

e
n
tr

e
w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 

m
a
in

ta
in

 a
 U

E
L
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e

in
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
.

A
 c

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

g
ro

u
p

o
f 

th
e
 L

if
e
lo

n
g
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 C

e
n
tr

e
 i

s
w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

ra
in

in
g
 f

o
r

c
a
re

e
rs

 i
n
 h

e
a
lt

h
 c

a
re

, 
e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n

a
n
d
 p

u
b
li
c
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti

o
n
 a

t 
a
ll

le
v
e
ls

.

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 J

o
b
s

T
h
e
 G

a
te

w
a
y
 t

o
 H

e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l
C

a
re

 p
ro

je
c
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
,

lo
o
k
in

g
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 r
o
u
te

s
 i

n
to

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 c
a
re

e
rs

in
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
to

r 
fo

r 
a
d
u
lt

s
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

.

T
h
e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

A
g
e
n
c
y

fu
n
d
e
d
 H

e
a
rt

 o
f 

T
h
a
m

e
s
 G

a
te

w
a
y

Jo
b
N

e
t 

p
ro

je
c
t 

h
a
s
 h

e
lp

e
d
 l

o
c
a
l

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
to

 j
o
b
s
.

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 a

c
o
m

m
it

m
e
n
t 

to
 e

x
p
lo

re
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f
th

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 i

ts
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 t

o
p
ro

m
o
te

 l
o
c
a
l 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t.

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 O

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s

W
e
lf

a
re

 t
o
 W

o
rk

 f
o
r 

D
is

a
b
le

d
P
e
o
p
le

 p
ro

je
c
t 

s
e
c
u
re

d
 f

o
r 

a
fu

rt
h
e
r 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

 t
h
ro

u
g
h

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l 

F
u
n
d
in

g
.

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 1
4

.6
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

in
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 i

n
c
o
m

e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
0

0
a
n
d
 2

0
0

2
. 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e
 b

ig
g
e
s
t 

ri
s
e

o
f 

a
n
y
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
.

E
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 a

c
ti

v
it

y
 o

f 
fe

m
a
le

s
 h

a
s

ri
s
e
n
 f

ro
m

 6
0

%
 i

n
 2

0
0

0
, 

to
 6

3
.2

%
in

 2
0

0
2

/
0

3
.

B
a
rk

in
g
 L

if
e
 L

o
n
g
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 C

e
n
tr

e

F
ro

m
 o

u
r 

m
is

s
io

n
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

fo
r

e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
.

Page 47



1
2

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n

“T
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 i

s
 s

tr
iv

in
g

to
 c

re
a
te

 a
 2

1
s
t 

c
e
n
tu

ry
e
c
o

n
o
m

y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 t

h
e

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 s
p
a
c
e
 a

n
d

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

n
e
w

 a
n
d

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 t

o
fl

o
u
ri

s
h
.”

S
o
c
ia

l 
E
n
te

rp
ri

s
e

A
 S

o
c
ia

l 
E
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 h
a
s

b
e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 w

it
h
 o

n
e
 n

e
w

e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 a

t 
it

s
 c

o
re

. 
A

 S
o
c
ia

l
E
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 
g
ro

u
p
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

to
w

a
rd

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

s
ta

tu
s
.

G
re

e
n
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 p

a
rt

 o
f

th
e
 G

re
e
n
 M

a
rk

 s
c
h
e
m

e
, 

w
h
ic

h
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
re

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

ll
y
 a

w
a
re

.

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 i

s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

L
o

n
d
o

n
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

A
g
e
n
c
y

(L
D

A
) 

to
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
 t

h
e

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 f

o
r 

L
o

n
d
o

n
,

w
h
ic

h
 w

il
l 

fo
rm

 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
p
ie

c
e
 o

f
th

e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 I
n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

P
a
rk

. 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

T
h
e
 L

D
A

, 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
’s

s
u
p
p
o
rt

, 
 h

a
s
 l

a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 a

n
In

n
o
v
a
ti

o
n
  

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t

fo
r 

th
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
R

iv
e
rs

id
e
.

D
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o

n
th

a
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

n
e
w

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s

s
ta

rt
e
r 

u
n
it

s
, 

w
il
l 

ta
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 i

n
 t

h
e

c
o
m

in
g
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

(2
0

0
4

).
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 b

e
g
u
n
 f

u
n
d
in

g
to

p
-
u
p
 a

c
ti

v
it

y
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 E

a
s
t

L
o

n
d
o

n
 S

m
a
ll
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
 t

o
p
ro

v
id

e
 s

ta
rt

-
u
p
 t

ra
in

in
g
. 

F
ro

m
 o

u
r 

m
is

s
io

n
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

o
u
r

m
is

s
io

n
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l 

jo
b
s

a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
.

In
 2

0
0

3
-
0

4
 w

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

o
o
k
 a

 m
a
jo

r
e
x
e
rc

is
e
 i

n
v
o
lv

in
g
 a

ll
 C

o
u
n
c
il

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
to

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 E

c
o

n
o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
. 

 T
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

il
l 

e
n
a
b
le

u
s
 t

o
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
te

 e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

in
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 m
u
c
h
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
ly

.

L
o
c
a
l

Jo
b
s

a
n
d

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 f

o
r 

L
o

n
d
o

n

Page 48



1
3

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n

C
re

a
ti

v
e
 I

n
d
u
s
tr

ie
s

A
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 M

a
lt

h
o
u
s
e

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl

y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

W
o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 L

D
A

 t
o

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

s
 o

n
e
 o

f
L
o

n
d
o

n
's

 C
re

a
ti

v
e
 "

h
u
b
s
".

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re

T
h
e
 L

D
A

 h
a
s
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f 

p
o
o
rl

y
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 r

o
a
d
s
 a

t
D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 D
o
c
k
 a

n
d
 i

s
 w

o
rk

in
g

w
it

h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 o

n
 d

e
li
v
e
ri

n
g
 a

£
7

 t
o
 £

9
m

 u
p
g
ra

d
e
 o

f 
th

e
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

h
e
re

.

A
n
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti

o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
fo

r 
E
u
ro

p
e
a
n
 R

e
g
io

n
a
l

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 (

E
R

D
F
) 

fo
r

re
p
a
ir

 o
f 

th
e
 r

o
a
d
s
 a

t 
D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

D
o
c
k
.

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

A
n
 I

n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
rv

e
y
 w

a
s

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

f 
a
ll
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

a
re

a
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

 T
h
e
 s

tu
d
y

w
il
l 

b
e
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g
 a

n
d

e
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n
 t

o
o
l 

to
 p

la
n
 f

o
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
.

C
h
il
d
c
a
re

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
il
d
c
a
re

 s
p
a
c
e
s

c
o

n
ti

n
u
e
d
. 

 S
in

c
e
 2

0
0

1
, 

th
e

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
u
t-

o
f-

s
c
h
o
o
l 

p
la

c
e
s

h
a
s
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f

ro
m

 1
0

0
8

 i
n
 2

0
0

1
to

 1
5

1
3

 p
la

c
e
s
 i

n
 2

0
0

4
. 

 P
re

-
s
c
h
o
o
l 

p
la

c
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f

ro
m

8
5

6
 p

la
c
e
s
 i

n
 2

0
0

1
 t

o
 1

2
0

0
 p

la
c
e
s

in
 2

0
0

4
.

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
rv

e
y

Page 49



1
4

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n

H
o
u
s
in

g
“ 

T
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 i

n
te

n
d
s
 t

o
im

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 a
n
d

a
v
a
il
a
b
il
it

y
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
a
v
a
il
a
b
le

 t
o
 a

ll
 s

e
c
ti

o
n
s
 o

f
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it

y
. 

 T
h
is

 w
il
l

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

h
a
v
e
 a

 d
e
c
e
n
t 

h
o
m

e
 a

n
d

li
v
in

g
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
w

il
l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

’s
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d

e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
.”

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
s

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 w

il
l 

c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

fu
rt

h
e
r

w
o
rk

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 f

le
x
ib

le
te

n
u
re

 o
n
 f

u
tu

re
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

it
e
s
.

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 a

im
s
 t

o
 r

e
a
c
h
 t

h
e

L
if

e
ti

m
e
 H

o
m

e
s
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 a
n
d

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 '
s
e
c
u
re

 b
y
 d

e
s
ig

n
' 
s
ta

tu
s

o
n
 n

e
w

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

n
d

e
s
ta

te
 r

e
n
e
w

a
l 

w
h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
. 

 I
n

2
0

0
4

-
5

, 
th

is
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
 e

c
o
-

h
o
u
s
in

g
.

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 i

s
 c

o
m

m
it

te
d
 t

o
e
n
s
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
a
t 

1
0

%
 o

f 
n
e
w

 h
o
m

e
s

w
il
l 

h
a
v
e
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 w

h
e
e
lc

h
a
ir

a
c
c
e
s
s
.

A
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 F

u
tu

re
s
 F

o
ru

m
 w

a
s
 s

e
t

u
p
 i

n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0

0
4

 t
o
 g

u
id

e
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
. 

 T
h
e
 f

o
ru

m
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t

h
e

C
h
ie

f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti

v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
, 

th
e

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

O
ff

ic
e
 f

o
r 

L
o

n
d
o

n
,

re
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
R

e
g
is

te
re

d
 S

o
c
ia

l
L
a
n
d
lo

rd
 (

R
S
L
) 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

o
ff

ic
e
rs

.

A
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 F

u
tu

re
s
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

F
o
ru

m
 i

s
 t

o
 b

e
 s

e
t 

u
p
 w

it
h

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

T
e
n
a
n
t 

A
d
v
is

o
r

s
h
o
rt

ly
.

T
h
e
 f

o
rm

a
l 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 a

p
p
o
in

t
P
re

fe
rr

e
d
 R

S
L
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

h
is

 y
e
a
r.

N
e
w

 a
n
d
 A

s
p
ir

a
ti

o
n
a
l 

H
o
m

e
s

O
u
r 

fo
c
u
s
 f

o
r 

n
e
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 w

il
l 

b
e

o
n
 k

e
y
 w

o
rk

e
r 

h
o
m

e
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
n
e

b
e
d
ro

o
m

 a
n
d
 f

o
u
r 

b
e
d
ro

o
m

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
.

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 i

s
 c

o
n
ti

n
u
in

g
 t

o
 w

o
rk

w
it

h
  

R
S
L
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 t
o

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 '
s
p
a
c
e
 f

o
r

le
a
rn

in
g
' 
in

 n
e
w

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
, 

th
is

 i
s

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

s
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 

lo
ft

s
fo

r 
le

a
rn

in
g
 p

ro
je

c
t.

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 E

x
is

ti
n
g
 S

to
c
k

S
to

c
k
 O

p
ti

o
n
s
 A

p
p
ra

is
a
l

C
o

n
s
u
lt

a
n
t,

 B
e
h
a
 W

il
li
a
m

s
 N

o
rm

a
n

a
n
d
 I

n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

T
e
n
a
n
t 

A
d
v
is

o
r,

P
P
C

R
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

te
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 F

u
tu

re
s

p
ro

je
c
t 

te
a
m

.

C
h
a
rl

e
c
o
te

 R
o
a
d
 w

o
n
 f

o
u
r 

a
w

a
rd

s
th

is
 y

e
a
r,

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
, 

B
e
s
t 

N
e
w

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
t 

th
e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l

A
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 H
o
m

e
o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
w

a
rd

s
a
n
d
 B

e
s
t 

N
e
w

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 a

H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o

n
 a

t 
th

e
E
v
e
n
in

g
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 A
w

a
rd

s
. 

F
ro

m
 o

u
r 

m
is

s
io

n
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

fo
r

h
o
u
s
in

g
.

C
h
a
rl

e
c
o
te

 R
o
a
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

Page 50



1
5

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t

“O
n
e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

k
e
y

in
g
re

d
ie

n
ts

 o
f 

th
is

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i

s
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 a
n

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

ll
y
 d

is
ti

n
c
t

a
re

a
 w

h
e
re

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

il
it

y
 i

s
s
e
e
n
 a

s
 a

 h
ig

h
 p

ri
o
ri

ty
a
n
d
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 i
s
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d

a
s
 a

n
 a

re
a
 w

it
h
 h

ig
h

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

a
rc

h
it

e
c
tu

re
.”

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
n
in

g

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 a

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

p
a
rk

s
a
n
d
 g

re
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 i

n
 O

c
to

b
e
r

2
0

0
3

. 
 I

t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 a

s
b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti

c
e
 b

y
 C

A
B
E

(C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f

o
r 

A
rc

h
it

e
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

th
e
 B

u
il
t 

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t)

.

A
 L

o
c
a
l 

P
u
b
li
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t

(L
P
S
A

) 
ta

rg
e
t 

fo
r 

w
o
o
d
la

n
d

p
la

n
ti

n
g
 w

a
s
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

O
ff

ic
e
 o

f 
th

e
 D

e
p
u
ty

 P
ri

m
e

M
in

is
te

r 
(O

D
P
M

).
  

N
e
w

 p
a
rk

w
o
o
d
la

n
d
 a

re
a
s
 w

il
l 

b
e
 p

la
n
te

d
 i

n
th

e
 c

o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
r.

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 f

o
r 

R
ip

p
le

 N
a
tu

re
R

e
s
e
rv

e
 a

n
d
 S

t 
P
e
te

r 
a
n
d
 S

t 
P
a
u
l’
s

C
h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

.

F
u
n
d
in

g

F
u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

P
h
a
s
e
 3

 o
f 

th
e
 B

e
a
m

V
a
ll
e
y
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
c
u
re

d
.

F
u
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
£

4
0

0
k
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

a
in

e
d

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 N

e
w

 O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s
 F

u
n
d
,

fo
r 

“T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 Y

o
u
r 

S
p
a
c
e
” 

 -
th

re
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
o
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
 p

a
rk

s
 i

n
c
lo

s
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt

a
ti

o
n
 w

it
h
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

.

A
 P

ro
je

c
t 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 G

ra
n
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e

H
e
ri

ta
g
e
 L

o
tt

e
ry

 F
u
n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

s
e
c
u
re

d
 f

o
r 

B
a
rk

in
g
 P

a
rk

.

N
e
w

 P
la

n
ti

n
g

K
in

g
 G

e
o
rg

e
 R

e
c
re

a
ti

o
n
 G

ro
u
n
d

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

P
h
a
s
e

1
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 G

re
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 T
h
is

 w
a
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
fu

n
d
in

g
 o

f 
£

7
0

k
 f

ro
m

 L
o

n
d
o

n
R

iv
e
rs

id
e
 L

td
.

H
a
lf

 a
 h

e
c
ta

re
 o

f 
p
la

n
ti

n
g
 w

a
s

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

t 
th

e
 L

e
y
s
.

A
w

a
rd

s

T
e
n
 p

a
rk

 p
la

y
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 m

e
e
t 

th
e

N
E
A

P
 (

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 E

q
u
ip

p
e
d

A
re

a
s
 f

o
r 

P
la

y
) 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

.

E
a
s
tb

ro
o
k
e
n
d
 C

o
u
n
tr

y
 P

a
rk

 a
n
d

th
e
 C

h
a
s
e
 N

a
tu

re
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 h

a
v
e

g
a
in

e
d
 L

o
c
a
l 

N
a
tu

re
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
D

e
s
ig

n
a
ti

o
n
. 

G
re

e
n
 F

la
g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
 t

o
E
a
s
tb

ro
o
k
e
n
d
 C

o
u
n
tr

y
 P

a
rk

 a
n
d
 S

t
P
e
te

r 
a
n
d
 S

t 
P
a
u
l’
s
 C

h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

.

A
1

3
 A

rt
s
c
a
p
e

P
h
a
s
e
 1

 o
f 

G
o
rs

e
b
ro

o
k
 P

a
rk

 i
s

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

T
h
e
 P

u
m

p
 H

o
u
s
e
 a

t 
M

o
v
e
rs

 L
a
n
e

ju
n
c
ti

o
n
 i

s
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

 I
t

h
o
u
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 p

u
m

p
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

fo
r

th
e
 u

n
d
e
rp

a
s
s
 a

n
d
 l

ig
h
ti

n
g

e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

fo
r 

a
rt

is
ti

c
 l

ig
h
ti

n
g

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
.

F
ro

m
 o

u
r 

m
is

s
io

n
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

fo
r 

a
d
is

ti
n
c
t 

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t.

Page 51



T
h
e
 R

e
p
-
T

il
e
 e

a
rt

h
w

o
rk

s
 a

t
M

o
v
e
rs

 L
a
n
e
 w

e
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h

n
e
w

 p
a
th

s
 a

n
d
 l

ig
h
ti

n
g
 a

ls
o

in
s
ta

ll
e
d
.

T
h
e
 Y

-
Jo

u
le

s
 e

a
rt

h
w

o
rk

s
  

a
n
d

li
g
h
ti

n
g
 a

t 
L
o
d
g
e
 A

v
e
n
u
e

ro
u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

T
h
e
 t

re
e
 l

in
e
 a

t 
M

o
v
e
rs

 L
a
n
e
 a

n
d

C
a
s
tl

e
 G

re
e
n
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 R

a
il
w

a
y
 T

re
e

L
in

e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

W
o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
g
u
n
 o

n
 G

a
le

 S
tr

e
e
t

a
n
d
 C

h
a
rl

to
n
 C

re
s
c
e
n
t 

S
u
b
w

a
y
s

a
n
d
 i

s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i

n
 J

u
ly

0
4

.

P
u
b
li
c
 A

rt
w

o
rk

A
 p

u
b
li
c
 a

rt
w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 f

o
r 

H
a
n
o
v
e
r

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

t 
S
a
y
w

o
o
d
 L

o
d
g
e
,

s
h
e
lt

e
re

d
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti

o
n
 i

n
D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

. 
 W

o
rk

 i
s
 s

e
t 

to
 s

ta
rt

 i
n

s
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0

0
4

.

A
 p

u
b
li
c
 a

rt
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 n

e
w

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 b

y
 L

o
o
k
 A

h
e
a
d

H
o
u
s
in

g
.

1
6

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n

T
h
e
 n

e
w

 P
u
m

p
 H

o
u
s
e
 a

t 
M

o
v
e
rs

 L
a
n
e

Page 52



1
7

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n

H
ig

h
w

a
y
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 D
o
c
k
's

 p
ri

v
a
te

ly
 o

w
n
e
d

a
n
d
 p

o
o
rl

y
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 r

o
a
d
s
 h

a
v
e

lo
n
g
 b

e
e
n
 a

 b
a
rr

ie
r 

to
 i

n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.

A
 m

a
jo

r 
le

a
p
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 i
n
 t

h
e

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 D
o
c
k

w
a
s
 t

h
e
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 o

f 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 r

o
a
d
s
. 

T
h
e
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 i

s
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 o

n
d
e
li
v
e
ri

n
g
 a

 £
7

 t
o
 £

9
 m

 u
p
g
ra

d
e

o
f 

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 D
o
c
k
's

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
u
ri

n
g
 2

0
0

4
/
0

5
.

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

n
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

fo
r 

E
u
ro

p
e
a
n
 R

e
g
io

n
a
l

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 (

E
R

D
F
) 

fo
r

re
p
a
ir

 o
f 

th
e
 r

o
a
d
s
 a

t 
D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

D
o
c
k
.

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 P

u
b
li
c
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 c

o
n
ti

n
u
e
d
 t

o
 w

o
rk

w
it

h
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 (

T
F
L
)

to
b
ri

n
g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

.

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 l

o
b
b
ie

d
 T

F
L
 f

o
r 

a
 s

ta
te

-
o
f-

th
e
-
a
rt

 “
b
e
n
d
y
 b

u
s
” 

s
e
rv

ic
e
,

c
a
p
a
b
le

 o
f 

b
e
in

g
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
d
 t

o
 a

tr
a
m

, 
to

 c
o

n
n
e
c
t 

B
a
rk

in
g
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e

w
it

h
 B

a
rk

in
g
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d

Il
fo

rd
.

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
ti

n
u
e
d
 t

o
h
ig

h
li
g
h
t 

w
it

h
 T

F
L
 t

h
e
 i

m
p
o
rt

a
n
c
e

o
f 

a
n
 e

a
rl

y
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
D

o
c
k
la

n
d
s
 L

ig
h
t 

R
a
il
, 

e
a
s
tw

a
rd

s
 t

o
B
a
rk

in
g
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

D
o
c
k
, 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

o
f 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e
.

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

“A
 v

a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

g
o
o
d

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

c
le

a
n
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 i
s

a
 k

e
y
 d

ri
v
e
r 

in
re

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll

a
s
 i

m
p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 l

o
c
a
l

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t.

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

n
d
in

g
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i

s
 a

 k
e
y

d
ri

v
e
r 

fo
r 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
,

e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

”

F
ro

m
 o

u
r 

m
is

s
io

n
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

fo
r

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

.

E
a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 T

ra
n
s
it

Page 53



1
8

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

“O
u
r 

c
it

iz
e
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e

ri
g
h
t 

to
 e

x
p
e
c
t 

h
ig

h
q
u
a
li
ty

 h
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l
c
a
re

 w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
y
 n

e
e
d

th
e
m

. 
 O

u
r 

v
is

io
n
 i

s
 f

o
r

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 l

iv
e
 a

s
 l

o
n
g
 a

n
d

h
e
a
lt

h
y
 l

iv
e
s
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
.”

H
e
a
lt

h
y
 L

iv
in

g

T
h
e
 p

il
o
t 

S
u
re

S
ta

rt
 N

u
tr

it
io

n
P
ro

je
c
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 v

e
ry

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l
a
n
d
 i

s
 b

e
in

g
 r

o
ll
e
d
 o

u
t 

to
 a

ll
 o

f 
th

e
b
o
ro

u
g
h
's

 S
u
re

 S
ta

rt
s
. 

It
 a

im
s
 t

o
im

p
ro

v
e
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 o

n
 n

u
tr

it
io

n
a
n
d
 d

ie
t 

fo
r 

p
a
re

n
ts

 a
s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
o
ff

e
ri

n
g
 w

a
y
s
 t

o
 o

b
ta

in
 m

o
re

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
e
a
lt

h
y
 f

o
o
d
 a

n
d

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t

ra
in

in
g
 t

o
 i

m
p
ro

v
e

c
o
o
k
e
ry

 s
k
il
ls

. 

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e
 L

IF
T

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

im
s

to
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 a
n
d
 G

P
fa

c
il
it

ie
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 i

s
p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 w

e
ll
. 

T
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
h
a
s
e

o
f 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
 h

a
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 a

t
T

h
a
m

e
s
 V

ie
w

 a
n
d
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 i
s

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 a

t 
M

o
rl

a
n
d
 R

o
a
d
.

N
e
w

 s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
's

s
u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 a

b
u
s
e
 t

e
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

p
u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
. 

T
h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

th
e
 c

o
-
o
rd

in
a
ti

o
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

a
ro

u
n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
ti

o
n
 o

f 
s
m

o
k
in

g
. 

A
ll

ta
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 i
n
it

ia
ti

v
e
s
 a

re
b
e
in

g
 i

m
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 t

o
a
s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
s

o
f 

P
ri

m
a
ry

 C
a
re

 T
ru

s
t 

(P
C

T
) 

s
e
rv

ic
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

B
la

c
k
 a

n
d
 M

in
o
ri

ty
E
th

n
ic

 (
B
M

E
) 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

h
a
rd

 t
o

re
a
c
h
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 

 W
e
 h

a
v
e
 u

s
e
d
 t

h
e

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n
 t

o
 i

d
e
n
ti

fy
 g

a
p
s
 a

n
d

s
e
rv

ic
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 w

o
rk

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 w

it
h
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

.

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 P

re
g
n
a
n
c
y

W
e
 a

re
 c

o
n
ti

n
u
in

g
 t

o
 i

m
p
le

m
e
n
t

th
e
 T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 A

g
e
 P

re
g
n
a
n
c
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 o

u
r

ta
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0

0
4

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

is
 n

o
w

 a
im

in
g
 f

o
r 

a
 r

e
d
u
c
ti

o
n
 t

o
3

0
%

 u
n
d
e
r 

1
8

 c
o

n
c
e
p
ti

o
n
 r

a
te

s
 b

y
2

0
0

6
/
7

. 
W

e
 a

re
 c

o
n
ti

n
u
in

g
 t

o
im

p
ro

v
e
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 t
o
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

il
it

y
 o

f 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

F
ro

m
 o

u
r 

m
is

s
io

n
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

fo
r

h
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

.

A
 c

o
n
c
e
p
t 

d
ra

w
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 h
e
a
lt

h
 f

a
c
il
it

y
 

o
n
 T

h
a
m

e
s
 V

ie
w

 e
s
ta

te

Page 54



1
9

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n

C
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 C

a
p
a
c
it

y

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 a

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
E
m

p
o
w

e
rm

e
n
t 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 c

a
p
a
c
it

y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
.

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 a

 B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 T

ra
in

in
g

P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti

o
n
s
 t

o
 a

c
c
e
s
s

fu
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

le
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s
.

L
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 i

n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0

0
3

 t
h
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

a
s
 e

x
c
lu

s
iv

e
ly

o
ff

e
re

d
 t

o
 A

b
b
e
y
, 

G
a
s
c
o
ig

n
e
 a

n
d

T
h
a
m

e
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 a

lr
e
a
d
y

s
e
rv

e
 o

n
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

s
. 

 T
h
e

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 r

a
n
 o

v
e
r 

s
ix

 m
o

n
th

s
,

c
o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 o

f 
th

re
e
 m

o
d
u
le

s
c
o
v
e
ri

n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

s
k
il
ls

 f
o
r 

b
e
in

g
 a

n
 a

c
ti

v
e
 c

it
iz

e
n

a
n
d
 g

a
in

in
g
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 a

n
d

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
. 

 R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 p
la

y
e
d

a
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
a
n
d
 e

le
v
e
n
 i

n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

ll
y

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
.

D
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

 f
o
ll
o
w

 u
p

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

a
n
d
 w

il
l 

b
e
 o

ff
e
re

d
 t

o
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
th

re
e
 S

u
re

 S
ta

rt
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i

n
A

b
b
e
y
, 

G
a
s
c
o
ig

n
e
 a

n
d
 T

h
a
m

e
s

W
a
rd

s
 a

im
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 p

a
re

n
t

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
.

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

“I
n
 o

rd
e
r 

fo
r 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
to

 b
e
 a

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 f

o
r

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 o

p
ti

m
is

e
 t

h
e

b
e
n
e
fi

ts
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
y
 o

c
c
u
r,

w
e
 n

e
e
d
 a

 f
lo

u
ri

s
h
in

g
c
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 w

h
e
re

 m
a
n
y

p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
b
e
 a

c
ti

v
e
.”

F
ro

m
 o

u
r 

m
is

s
io

n
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

fo
r

c
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 i

n
it

ia
ti

v
e
. 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s

Page 55



C
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 R

e
v
ie

w

L
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r,

 t
h
e
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d

it
s
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f

th
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 a

n
d

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l

S
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
.

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt

, 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it

y
S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
ly

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
n
e
w

e
d
 i

n
c
o

n
s
u
lt

a
ti

o
n
 w

it
h
 s

u
b
-
g
ro

u
p
s
 o

f
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
p
a
rt

n
e
r

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti

o
n
s
 a

n
d
 l

o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
.

T
h
e
 n

e
w

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 d

e
li
v
e
re

d
 t

o
e
v
e
ry

 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
.

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
a
s
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

to
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
 f

o
c
u
s
 o

n
 k

e
y
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
e
s
.

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
u
b
-
g
ro

u
p
s
 w

a
s

h
a
lv

e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 s

u
b
-
g
ro

u
p
s
 w

e
re

g
iv

e
n
 a

 b
ig

g
e
r 

ro
le

 i
n
 s

e
tt

in
g

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d

R
e
n
e
w

a
l 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 (

N
R

F
) 

th
a
t 

w
il
l

h
e
lp

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt

s
 w

il
l 

b
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d

th
ro

u
g
h
 a

 n
e
w

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
.

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l 

F
u
n
d
in

g

A
S
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

it
s
 A

n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f
L
o
c
a
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
, 

th
e

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

O
ff

ic
e
 f

o
r 

L
o

n
d
o

n
(G

O
L
) 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 t

h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f
th

e
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 I
n
 2

0
0

3
/
0

4
, 

w
e

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 s
p
e
n
d
 o

f 
o

n
ly

3
.7

%
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
, 

w
e
ll
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
ts

 p
e
rm

it
te

d
 l

im
it

s
.

G
O

L
 p

ra
is

e
d
 o

u
r 

N
R

F
 f

u
n
d
e
d

p
ro

je
c
ts

 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 h

e
a
lt

h
o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it

h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
il
ln

e
s
s
,

“W
a
lk

in
g
 B

u
s
e
s
” 

a
n
d
 a

n
ti

-
s
o
c
ia

l
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

p
a
tr

o
ls

 a
s
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f
g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti

c
e
.

2
0

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n

Page 56



R
e
la

te
d

A
rt

ic
le

s

2
1

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 2

0
0
1
-
2
0
0
2

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 2

0
0
2
-
2
0
0
3

T
h
e
s
e
 c

a
n
 b

e
 f

o
u
n
d
 o

n
-
li
n
e
 a

t:

w
w

w
.b

a
rk

in
g
-
dd
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

.g
o
v
.u

k

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 c

o
m

p
il
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 I

m
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 D

iv
is

io
n
.

F
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n
 p

le
a
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t:

 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 I

m
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 D

iv
is

io
n

T
o
w

n
 H

a
ll

B
a
rk

in
g
 I

G
1

1
 7

L
U

T
e
l:

0
2

0
 8

2
2

7
 2

9
7

3

E
m

a
il
:

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
@

lb
b
d
.g

o
v
.u

k

Page 57



Page 58



AGENDA ITEM 13

Page 59

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7, 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7, 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 69

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7, 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 14

Page 71

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 7, 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 15

Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 8, 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 16

Page 77

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 17

Page 83

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank


